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P.A.S.: Change of Zone #07040HP DATE: July 20, 2007
Landmark Designation

SCHEDULED PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING: August 1, 2007

PROPOSAL: The Historic Preservation Commission, on behalf of Havelock
Business Association, requests landmark district designation for the
Havelock Avenue Landmark District.

CONCLUSION: Designation of Havelock Avenue Landmark District as a Landmark
District appears to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and
with Chapter 27.57 of the Zoning Code (Historic Preservation District).

RECOMMENDATION:   Approval

GENERAL INFORMATION:   

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Havelock Addition, Lots 19-24 of Block 14, and Lots 13-22 of
Block 15, and Lots 13-24 of Block 16, and Lots 1-12 of Block 31, and Lots 1-12 of Block
32, and Lots 1-6 of Block 33; and all of Baldwin’s Subdivision (Lots 1-6); in Lincoln,
Lancaster County, Nebraska, located in the NW 1/4 of Section 09-10-07 and in the SW
1/4 of Section 04-10-07, Lincoln, Lancaster County, Nebraska.

LOCATION: The properties from 6024 Havelock Avenue to 6242 Havelock Avenue
and from 6033 Havelock Avenue to 6245 Havelock Avenue.

APPLICANT: Historic Preservation Commission
On behalf of Havelock Business Association
c/o Planning Department
555 South 10th Street
Lincoln, NE 68508
(402)441-6360

OWNER: Multiple

CONTACT: Ed Zimmer for Historic Preservation Commission
Planning Dept.
555 South 10th Street
Lincoln, NE 68508
(402)441-6360
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EXISTING ZONING: B-3 Commercial District

SIZE: 9.45 acres, more or less. 

EXISTING LAND USE: Neighborhood commercial district.

SURROUNDING LAND USE AND ZONING: Additional B-3 Commercial District
immediately adjacent in all directions.  Further southwest and southeast, R-6 residential
(developed primarily with single-family residences; directly south, O-3 office district utilized
by St. Patrick’s Church and School; further north, I-1 Industrial district developed with
residences and commercial uses.

HISTORY: Havelock Avenue, first called Jackson Avenue and later (1912-1930) called “O”
Street in the town of Havelock, was the main commercial district of the independent town
of Havelock from its incorporation in 1893 to its annexation in 1930.  It retains the scale,
architectural character, and many of the buildings of that period.  

UTILITIES: This area is served by all City utilities.

PUBLIC SERVICE: This area is served by all City public services.

ESTHETIC CONSIDERATIONS:
The nearly continuous streetscape of one and two story, flat roofed commercial buildings,
flanking wide sidewalks and the two-way street with on-street parking, retains the
appearance of a typical small-town “Main Street.”  The Lancaster Block at 62nd and
Havelock on the east and the Joyo Theater, the Schmidt building, and the Masonic Temple
building on the west near 61st and Havelock Ave. “bookend” the district.

ALTERATIVE USES:
Landmark district designation does not change the permitted uses in the B-3 Business
District.

ANALYSIS:  

1. Lincoln Municipal Code, section 27.57.120 provides for designation of landmarks
and landmark districts that are “Associated with events, person, or persons who
have made a significant contribution to the history, heritage, or culture of the City of
Lincoln, the County of Lancaster, the State of Nebraska, or the United States" or
that “Represent a distinctive architectural style or innovation..."



Change of Zone #07040HP PAGE 3

2. The Historic Preservation Commission held a public hearing on June 21, 2007 and
voted unanimously to recommend that Havelock Avenue Landmark District be
designated as a Lincoln landmark district for its architectural and historic character.

3. The application is enclosed.  The proposed district includes the Lancaster Block of
ca. 1890 (6201 Havelock Avenue), listed on the National Register of Historic Places
for its architectural significance and its historic significance in the development of
Havelock.  The district also includes the Joyo Theater (originally Lyric Theater, 6102
Havelock Avenue) of ca. 1928, the Schmidt Block of 1916 (6037 Havelock Ave.),
and several other buildings which would likely qualify for individual landmark
designation. 

4. Preservation guidelines for the proposed landmark district are attached.  They are
based on the  landmark guidelines used for over two decades in Haymarket
Landmark District.  Landmark district properties are subject to review of exterior
changes based on these guidelines, with procedures for resolution of any disputes
between owners and the Preservation Commission. 

5. The 2030Comprehensive Plan includes a strategy to “Continue to inventory,
research, evaluate and celebrate the full range of historic resources throughout
Lancaster County, collaborating with individuals, associations, and institutions, and
designating landmarks and districts through the local preservation ordinance and the
National Register of Historic Places.”

6. A letter of opposition (enclosed) to designation of one property, at 6240 Havelock
Avenue, was received from the Trustee for the property, a former gas station now
used as a liquor store.  The property is at the northeast corner of the district and is
not considered a contributing property to the historic character of the area. The
Preservation Commission discussed whether to recommend excluding the property
from the proposed district and voted instead to recommend the boundaries as
proposed.  The discussion focused on the benefits of reviewing future changes to
the property for impact on the historic district.

Prepared by:

________________________
Edward F. Zimmer, Ph. D.
Historic Preservation Planner
441-6360
ezimmer@lincoln.ne.gov

F:\FILES\PLANNING\PC\CZ\HP\CZ07040HP.EFZ.wpd



56
th

 S
t

70
th

 S
t

Adams St

Fletcher Ave

B - 3

I - 1

R - 6
P

P R - 6O - 3

PLATTE  AV

N
  6

1S
T 

 S
T

N
  6

2N
D

  S
T

N
  6

3R
D

  S
T

BALLARD  AV

HAVELOCK  AV

Change of Zone #07040
Havelock Avenue Landmark District

m:\plan\arcview\07_cz\cz07040

Two Square Miles
Sec. 09 T10N R07E
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Zoning:

R-1 to R-8
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O-1
O-2
O-3
R-T
B-1
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H-1
H-2
H-3
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I-1
I-2
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Residential District
Agricultural District
Agricultural Residential District
Office District
Suburban Office District
Office Park District
Residential Transition District
Local Business District
Planned Neighborhood Business District
Commercial District
Lincoln Center Business District
Planned Regional Business District
Interstate Commercial District
Highway Business District
Highway Commercial District
General Commercial District
Industrial District
Industrial Park District
Employment Center District
Public Use District 
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ADDDDQII' 'J'O .:nI'nOll 'rO AJIBRD 'I'D 10UIIQ CD:DDAJlCS
 

LDtCOIM, 1DDA8:u.
 

1. __ 

Hiltoric: Bav.lock Av.a.- ~Ddm·rk District 
aDd/or corrmon; 

2 • LOCA".l'IOIl 

It proposed Lan~rk Designation: 

Address (street number aDd ~e): 

If proposed ~ark District Designation: 

Describe boundariel by use or street names 

Generally bounded on the north by the alley runaing e&st~west between 
Platte Avenue and Havelock p.venue; on the south Dy the alley rwming 
east-west between Hav8lock Avenue aDd Ballard Avenuel on t~ eaet Dy the 
U rd Street; and on the weet by the «lley runDiDg nortb-BOUth between 
60th and 61et Street•. 

60~4-6240 Havelock P.venue
 
4329-4341 H. 6lst Street
 
4321-4421 H. 62nd Street
 

propo,ed pe,iqnatiOB CAtegOry 

__Bite--&-Landmark District ---lLdi8trict 
__Londmark __:builcUng(s) __Ql)ject 

__atructure 

Prelil,nt Use 

__agricul ture __induetrial _reli!iJiouB 
....A.-cOMlercial __II11i tary _scientitic 
__educational _lfNlewn __transportat'n 
-!--«ntertainment ---A..Ruk _other 
~ov8rnment ---A..Rrivate residence 

" • ODD. OJ' .aoPDn 

Haa.; S•• attaeb.d aha.t•• 
AddreBs Istreet number and namel : 

If propoeed LandMark District Designation, attach & aeparate page liBting 
all propertiee in proposed district Dy addre.e and include the names of 
property owners of record al or t~ weeks prior to the date of filing ead 
an indication of Which properti8e are eignificant. 



!. QIIOGaN'BICAL DAI'A 

Legal De8eription 

Kaveloek Addition, Lot. 19-24 of Block 14, Lots 13-22 of Bloek 15, 
Lot. 1-6, of Baldwin'. Subdivi.ion of Lots 23 , 24 of Block 15 of 
Kaveloek Addtion, Lots 13-34 of Bloek 16, Lots 1·12 of Block 31. Lots 
1~12 of Block 32, Lots 1-5 of Block 33, and all sdjacent pUblie right­
of-way. All in the S 1/2 See. 4-T10N-R7B of the 6th P.M., Lineoln, 
Lanca.ter county, Nebraska. 

Humber ot Acre. or Square Peet: J.45 acre. 

IS. U'U8DrrA'lJ:OI' Dt UtB'l'Pla 8mrYWY'8 

Title: .i.torie aDd ArChitectural 8it•• Surv-y of Liaaola 

cate 1120 _Federal _State __COUJ:lty ..A.,Loeal 

Depository tor survey reeords Nebraska State Historieal society 

City, Town: Liacol1l State: .. 

Is proposed Lan4mark or Landmark Distriet listed 1n the National Register? 

__ yes, 
_ '_ no 

date listed _ 

7 • DBSCUrl'IOIf UD HI8TORY 

Conditign 

---!....excellent ____deteriorated ---lLUDaltered --I-origiDal site 
_,_good _ ruins -..1..altered __lnOved date, _ 

_unexposed---lLfair 

Deseribe the preseDt and original (if known) physieal appearanee of all 
signifieant supportive teatures of the Landmar~ or the signifieant 
struetures within the Landmark District. A1so. provide iDformation about 
the strueturas that are intrusions within the L&n4mark District. 

8. SIQIJ1'n~ 

Period Area. of Significanee-Check and iM.tify 

----prehiatorie ___areheology-prehiatorie ___landseape .rehiteeture 
__1400-1411 ___areheology-historie _law 
__1500-159' _agricu.lture _liter.ture 
__1600-161' -&-arcbiteeture --",iiitary 
_1700-171' _art __l1IUsic 
...A..1800-189J -&-cOtMleree ----philosophy 
....!...UOO- __eommunicationa -4-PQlities/government 

_community plaJlJ1ing ___religion 
___conservation _seience 
..Leconcmd,es _seulpture 
_education ..L.ccia1/h~.nitarian 

_engineering ..A.,theater 
_exploration/ssttlement ..A.,transportation 
..Lindustry ___other (specity) 
_invention 



specific dates: 11'0-1'50 

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph): 
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IChe~~ one(s) that apply)
 

___x_	 ~sociated with events, person, or paraona who have made a aignificant 
contribution to the hiatory, berit.ge, or culture of the City of 
Lincoln, the County of Lancaeter, the State of Nebr.a~., or tbs united 
Statelll; 

__x__	 Represents a distinctive architectural atyle or innovation, or is the 
work of a craft8ll18n who1M!' individual lIfOrk 1& aignificant in tbe 
davelopment of the City of Lincoln, the county of Lancaater, the St.te 
of Nebr.ak., or the united st.te., or 

Representa archeological values in that it yielda or nay be likely to 
yield inforlll8tion pertaining to p~e-biatory or history. 

a.ldwin, Sara Mullin. Who" Who in Lincoln. Lincoln, NK: Robert M. Baldwin, 
1'4:8. 

Blumenaon, John J.G. Identifying AmeriClD Architecture; A picto~.l auid; to the 
Style. apd Terms, 1600-19t5. 4:nd ed. Walnut Creek, CA: Alt&Mi~a pres., 1995. 

prancavigIia, Richard V, Main Street Revi'lt,d. Iowa City, IAI UDiveraity of 
Iowa Preas, 1"6. 

]'he Future Indu,trll1 Center of the Middle we,t; Havelock. Lincoln, NE: Wooda 
Br08. Co., 1917. 

Lancaster County, NB, aegiatrar of Deedlll. PeOds ROCorda. (1884-1987). 

Lancalllter County, NB, Regiatrar of Deedlll. plat MARl. (1887-1890). 

Lincoln City oiroctori88. 1894:-1998. 

Lipcoln Star, (Lincoln, NBI1890-1962. 

Lincoln Urban Development Department. Havelock Redevelgpment Pl,n. City of 
Lincoln, Lincoln, MH, December, 1997. 

Mathis, Gregory R. ·Chic.go, Burlington. QUincy Locomotive Ho, 710,· N.tional 
Regiater ofhiatoric Placea nomination. Listed June 20, 1997. 

MCKee. J.llles L.• Bdward P. Zilftlll8r, and Lori It, Jorgensen. Hayelock: a Phgtlj? 

Hi.tory and Milking Tour. Lincoln, HI: J • L Lee 00" 19'3, 

Miller, Brian. Mrly Town aroyth Around Lincoln, NBI • IQRk at the 80g100iu9, 
Growth, aDd Annexation ot UOiyer.itv Pl.c•• College View, Havelgck, and 
BekhAnY. Lincoln. HE: typescript, 1'88. 



Nebr"k. Stlt. Journal, (Lincoln, ME) 1890-1962. 

Sanborn Map Co. at New York. Pin lneuranC' MaDI ot Lincoln. Nebraska. NiBw York: 
sanbOrn Map Ca. at New York, 1191, 1893, 1903, 1928, 1956, 1964. 

Sawyer. Andrew J., e~. Lincoln and X4nca.t.r County Kebr.ska, Vol. II. Chie.go: 
The S.J. Cl.rk. Publi.hiDg Co., 1916. 

zimmer. Edw.rd P. -Lanea.ter Block. w National Regilter at Hi.torie Pl.ee. 
nomination. Listed April 13, 1989. 

11. J'OD I'IlDUE BY: 

NalDe/Title: Gregory •• bt1a.la. C~ity Deon1os-ut 'hcJm1du 

D.te submitted: 

Street. Number: 110 B. 10~ str••t Telephone: (402) 441-710' 

City or Town: LiDCOlll St.te r _ebruJr.. 

sign.ture _ 

POR HISTORIC PRBSERVATION COMMISSION USB ONLY: 

'DATE I..ANJJM1,RK!LAJmMAR]( DISTRIC")' DiSIGD.TBD 

LANDMARK!LAJmMAR]( 'DISTRICT NUlQBR 
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HAVELOCK AVENUE LANDMARK DISTRICT
 
LIST OF BUILDINGS
 

SOUTH SIDE OF THE AVENUE 
LC 13:Gl4-00I (contributing) 
Lancaster Block 
620I Havelock Avenue 

The Lancaster Block is a two-story, Romanesque styled brick building of rectangular 
plan, with a flat roof, a cast-iron storefront, and limestone trim. A one-story concrete block 
addition is located on the south. The north, primary flll'ade bas two storefronts flanking a central 
entrance, opening on the stairs to the upper floor. The storefronts have recessed entrances with 
large display windows on either side, and tall transoms. The central en1Jance is flush with the 
fa~ade. Cast-iron lintels with rosettes span the bays. A brick band with recessed panels is located 
above the storefront lintels. The bays are set between brick and stone piers that rise above the 
cornice to corbelled tops. The second story repeats the tripartite division of the groWld floor. The 
wider side bays have three windows each, with bricked-in transoms and stone lintels between the 
windows and the transoms. The central bay has a single window, with a blind arch in-filled with 
a dogtooth pattern above. A stone sill band spans the fa~ade below the windows. A thick, rock­
faced stone band spans the side bays between the upper story windows and the cornice. The 
cornicc has a considerable amount of brickwork, including basketwork, corbeling, dentils, and 
recessed panels. Acorn-shaped finials set atop the piers. Although it is prominent, the west fa~ade 

is secondary to the north f~ade. This f~ade repeats the fenestration and brick work of the north 
wall for only one narrow bay at the north comer. The rest of the fa~ade is virtuaJly without 
fenestration on the ground floor, except for two small, high windows with stone lintels and sills, 
and a door to the south. The second floor has three pairs of double-hung windows and a single 
one to the south, all with blocked in transoms. The cornice is also simpler, with dentils and 
corbelling, and recessed panels only above the windows. 

A one-story, flat roofed, ccment block addition was added to the back of the building in 
1958. Originally used for storage, its west facade was converted into a storelTont in 1989. The 
fa~ade is brick veneer and has a central entrance with two large display windows on each side. A 
large rooftop deck provides outdoor space for the second floor apartments in the main building. 

Referred to as the McForland Block in a Ig92 city directory, the Lancaster Block is the 
oldest building in the district. It was built by the Lancaster Land Company in Ig90, neor wbat 
they hoped would become the center of Havelock's business district. The developers constructed 
this handsome building, on what was otherwise an open prairie, to create a sense of pennanence 
that would hopefully encourage further development. As built, it had. commercial space on the 
ground floor and a meeting hall above that was converted into apartments during the 1920s. The 
building has seen a wide variety of tenants over the years, including a drug store in 1892; an 
undertaking and furniture shop in 1904; several grocery and general stores; a hardware store, and 
a liquor store. The Lancaster Block is most significant for its role in the Burlington Shop Strike 
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of 1922. The upper floor of the building contained the "Labor Templc," where the decision was 
made to go the strike, which ultimately led to the dcclinc of Havelock, and the vote for 
annexation in 1930. This building was fully restored in 1987-88 and listed on the National 
Register of Historic Places in 1989. Today, it houses a charitable organization and a beauty salon. 

LC13:G14-002 (contributing) 
Havelock Garage 
6033 Havelock Avenue 
ca. 1922 

The Havelock Garage is a one·story, flat roofed, brick building with stone trim. Thc 
building has a rectangular plan and a symmetrical tripartite facade that is constructed from brown 
brick. Thc facade rests on a stone base and the bays set between brick piers that rise above the 
cornice. The piers feature stone trim just above the storefront, more elaborate detailing near the 
cornice, and thick coping stones. The central bay features a large overhead garage door and large 
windows on either side. The east bay contains two large windows, separated by a thin mullion, 
and a door, while the western bay has a third window instead of a door. All of the windows have 
stone sills and soldier brick lintels. A pedimented parapet completes the facade. The side and rear 
walls are built from eommon orange brick. The west wall is windowless and has a stepped 
parapet with tile coping. The rear wall has two sixteen-light windows, a garage door, two small 
windows, and a basement entrance that is accessed by an in-ground ramp. 

The ftrst building on this site was a tiny, wood-frame scale house built around the turn of 
the century by coal dealer Henry Hemple, The structure lasted only a few years and was gone by 
the late 1910s. Mintie Schmidt, the same developer who built the Schmidt Brothers Building 
next door, built the garage in 1922. The garage is one of the few buildings in the district that has 
remained in its original use for its entire existence. Frank Wilcox's garage was the first tenant of 
the building, moving into it from the Schmidt Building in 1922. Over the years, the garage has 
gone by many different names, including the George DeLong Garage, 1923; Havelock Garage, 
1924-1934; Havelock Chevrolet, 1934-38; Havelock Westling Garage, 1939-59; and Rad's 
Garage and Used Car Sales in the 1960s. Today, Havelock Avenue Motors, a used car dealer/ 
repair shop, leases the building. The parking lot west of the garage has never been built on and 
has historically been used as a display/parking lot by the automotive businesses located in the 
garage. 

LC 13:G14-003 (contributing) 
Schmidt Brothers Building 
6037-45 Havelock Avenue/4325-45 North 61st Street 

The Schmidt Brothers Building is a large, two-story, rectangular shaped, brick business 
block, with metal and stone trim. This large commercial building with its Neo-classial details, 
measures is 50' wide and 165' long. The street facing facades (north and east) are constructed from 
dark brown brick, while the south and west walls are common orange brick. The principal, north 
facade sits on a stone base and is partitioned into two bays. The eastern bay has a wide, central 
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window with a narrow window to the east and a doorway to the west. The openings have tall, multi­
light leaded glass transoms. The windows have stone sills and the central window has a transom 
vent. The western bay originally featured a large garage door with flanking display windows and 
transoms. The garage door now eontains a modem pedestrian entrance with double doors, sidelights 
and a transom. The original transom above is covered with metal panels. The second floor has cight 
double-hung windows, four in each bay, and a stone sill band. The facadc is compLeted by an 
entablature with a stone frieze, a brick architrave, and a pressed metal cornice with large dentils. In 
the center ofthe archtrave is a stone pancl inscribed with "Schmidt Brothers 1916." Since it is a 
comer building, the east facade is quite prominent, but secondary to the north facade. This facade 
continues all of the architectural element fOWld on the north facade, except for an inscribed stone 
panel in the entablature. This facade has an assymetrical fenestration pattern that is quite different 
on each side ofits central entrance which opens to a stairway to the second floor. South ofthe central 
entrance there are four equal sized bays, two with storefronts having central, recessed entrances 
flanked by large display windows; and then two bays fenestrated with wide windows. North of the 
central entrance, the fenestration pattern is more complex. From the central entrancc thcre is a bay 
fenestrated by a narrow doorway, a widc window, and a narrow window, seperated by mullions. 
Continuing northward, there are three windows, an entrance, two windows, and a narrow window. 
Thc second floor windows loosely follow thc fenestration pattern of the first floor and are arranged 
in a 2-3-2-2-3-2-3-2-2-2-1 pattern from south to north. The rear wall has five segmental opcnings 
on each floor, two doorways with tall transoms and three windows on the first floor, and five two­
light windows on the second floor, with corbelled brackets completing this facadc. Thc west wall 
has stepped parapet, a four-light window on each floor, and the vestage ofa large painted sign, which 
covcrs most of the second floor. 

The first buildings on this site were a small feed store and a coal shed built in the 1890s and 
demolished in the 191Os. The Schmidt Brothers Building was erected in 1916 by the Schmidt 
brothers, who ovm.ed a small chain of clothing stores in southeast Nebraska, with locations jn 
dmvtown Lincoln and Beatrice. Early tenants of the building include a Ford dealership and a garage 
in thc western storefront facing Havelock Avenue and the Farmers & Mcchanic's Bank, which was 
located in the eastern storefront from 1917 until1931.ln 1932, Castle, Roper, & Matthews Mortuary 
moved into the space once occupied by the garagc. Thc funcral parlor, wbose name changed to Roper 
& Sons Funeral Chapcl in 1942, has remained in this location for nearly seven decades. Thc 
storefronts along 61 11 Street have seen adiverse tenant basc over the years, including several cleaners 
and grocery stores, a milk dealer, a cigar store, a shoe shop, a radio dealer, an appliance store, a real 
estate office, an insurance agency, a labor union, a beauty salon and the Havelock Post Officc. The 
Post Office was located in the southern section of the building from 1916 until 1983. 
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LC13:GI4-004 (contributing) 
Johnson Hardware Building 
6101 Havelock Avenue 
1905, 1965 

Johnson Hardware is a two-story, rectangular shaped, flat roofed, brick commercial building 
with stone trim. The building is 28' wide and 100' deep, with a one-story, 28' x 67', masonry addition 
behind it. The street-facing facades were constructed from tan brick, however, everything below the 
cornice has been painted. In 1955, the original cast iron storefront and recessed comer entrance were 
removed. The storefront was then divided into two bays, the entrance was moved, and brick piers 
replaced the cast iron columns. The eastern bay contains a large display window and an entrance, 
flush with the facade. The western bay contains two large display widows. The original cast-iron 
lintel with rosettes still spans the storefront. The second floor has four regularly spaced double-hung 
windows, with a rock-faced stone sill band and lintels. The cornice consists of banding and 
corbelled denticular elements. Since it is a comer building, the west wall has been treated as a 
secondary facade. While the storefront fenestration is repeated on only the northern most bay of this 
wall, the cornice continues along the entire facade. There are also three, high windows and a door 
on the ground floor and five windows, identical to those on the principal facade, on the upper floor. 
Four modem windows have been installed between the original second floor windows. The east wall 
has seven second story windows and the rear wall has two eight-light windows. The rear addition 
is a flat roofed structure, with a rectangular plan. It has a door on the west and an overhead garage 
door on the south. Grab iroru; are built into the back wall and a modem stairway provides access to 
a rooftop deck. 

The first building on this site was a two-story, wood-framed structure erected by William 
Johnson in1890. Johnson replaced the original building with the current structure in ]905, at a cost 
of$6,000. The building has contained a hardware store for most of its existence. Its list of tenants 
includes Jolmson Hardware, 1905-18; Andrews Hardware, early t920s; Meyer & Barr Hardware, 
late 1920s-33. Victor Anderson purchased the building from Mr. Johnson in 1934, and used it as a 
warehouse for Anderson Hardware through the late 1950s. Anderson also converted the second floor 
into apartments in 1946. Other tenants include Wyman Furniture & Appliance, and Havelock 
Furniture & Appliance. Mahoney & Haeppner built the rear addition for $1 0.500 in 1965. Currently, 
the building contains a telephone store and warehouse space. 

LCI3:GI4-005 (compatible) 
Farmers and Mechanics Bank 
6105 Havelock Avenue 

The former bank is a tall, one-story, flat roofed, brick conunercial building that is 22' wide 
and 42' deep. The facade originally had a recessed entrance to the west and a large, round-arched 
window that was reiterated in a rounded erest located above the pressed metal eornice. The facade 
was heavily altered in 1976. The pressed metal cornice and parapet were removed and aPerma-Stone 
veneer was installed over the original, brick facade. Although the window and entrance were left 
in place, they were altered. The arched top of the window was concealed and the recessed entrance 
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was converted into a vestibule. The entrance is now flush with the facade and features an aluminum 
and glass door with sidelights. The rear wall of the building is stuccoed and a carport is located 
behind it. The carport consists of flat roof supported by mctal columns. 

This building was constructed for the Farmers and Mechanics Bank in 1903. The bank, which 
was founded in 1900, remained in this location 1917 when it moved into the Schmidt Brothers 
Building. Over the years, the building has contained a barber shop, 1918-21; a hardware, 1922; a 
jewelry store from the mid· I920s until 1933; a lavern, 1935-37; and a dairy slore, 1939-58.ln 1959, 
the building was converted into a cafe. Since the early I970s the diner has been called Norma's Place 
Cafe. The former bank is considered to be non-eontributing in its present condition, due to the 
facade's high degree of alteration. 

LC13:Gl4-006 (intrusive) 
Smith Building 
6111 Havelock Avenue 
Belmont Construction Co., contractor 
1978 

The design ofthis two-story, rectangular shaped, brick commereial building was inspired by 
an architectural movemenlcalled the Shed Style. This style originated in California in the 1960s and 
was used mostly for residential and suburban commercial buildings. This reddish-orange brick 
building is characterized by its shed roof, which slopes from side-to-side, rather than front to back, 
like those on every other building in the district. The Smith Building is a, eommereial building, with 
a and an entrance bay at the street front. The principal facade has a reeessed doorway and a large 
display window on the first floor. On the second floor, a short, wide window is located above the 
entrance and a tripartite window is loeated directly above the first floor window. The rear of the 
building is quite similar to the front of the building, except that it lacks an entry bay. It has a large 
window on the first floor, a three-light window on the upper floor, and an open staircase that 
accesses a second floor apartment. The east wall has a several small offices on it, each with an 
entrance and a window. 

This building replaced a handsome, one-story, lum-<>f-the-century, framed structure that had 
a gable roof with elegant bargeboards under its eaves. The original building was first used as a 
residence and converted into a dry goods store in 1904. A small, brick building was constructed 
between it and the Fanners and Mechanic Bank in the 191 Os. Both structures were razed in 1977 to 
make way for the current structure, which was built for $50,000 by Belmont Construction in 1978. 
Following the tradition of"main street" buildings, this structure contains commercial spaces on the 
ground floor and apartments on the upper floor. Businesses that have been located in the Smith 
Building include Havelock Barbers and Fauser Oil Company. Although this structure blends with 
the older buildings in the district in size, scale, and materials, it is considered intrusive due to its 
architectural style and date of construction. 
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1893 

LC 13:G 14-007 (contributing) 
Walton Block Addition/Arnold's Tavern 
6113 Havelock Avenue 

This handsome structure was builtin 1893, two years after the completion ofits older sibling 
to the east. The structure is a two-story, rectangular shaped, brick commercial building with a flat 
roof, limestone trim, and a one-story addition in back. Although it looks nearly identical to the 
original Walton Block, it is slightly longer, measuring 25' x 80' in size. The facade originally had a 
cast iron storefront with a recessed central entrance, flanking display windows, transoms, and an 
entrance to the second floor on the east. The storefront was remodeled in 1990, leaving only the 
metal lintel with rosettes in place. The original second floor entry was altered and is now the only 
entrance on the facade. The rest of the storefront contains a band offour windows, set about 4' above 
the sidewalk. The second floor is unaltered and features four regularly spaced, segmentally arched 
one-over-one windows with stone keystones. Rock-faced stone bands cxtend above and below the 
windows. Above the windows arc recesscd stone panels and a stone band. Originally, the building 
had a pressed-metal cornicc and crest. These features were removed in the 1920s. At the edges of 
the facade, brick and stonc piers rise to the top ofthe cornice. A distinctive, goblet shaped neon sign 
was placed on the facade about 1950. This distinctive sign has become an icon within thc district and 
a historically significant featme of the building. The sidewalls are stuccoed with cement and both 
have several seeond floor windows. The rcar wall of the original building has had modem tongue­
and-groove siding applied. The one-story addition is brick, with a single doorway on its back wall. 

When Thomas Walton decided to construct this building in 1893, he used a plan that was 
nearly identical to the one used to erect the original Walton Block, which was built two years prior. 
This building's first traccable tenants were Theodore Jacobs' general merchandise store, 1904-1908, 
and Glenn Hcnnan's billiard, 1926-49. Since 1950, the building has housed Arnold's Tavern, a 
prominent Havelock watering hole. 

LC13:Gl4-008 (contributing) 
Walton Block 
6117 Havelock Avenue 
ca. 1891 

The Walton Block is a tall, two-story, flat-roofed, brick commcrcial building with limestone 
trim. The building has a rectangular plan and measures 25' wide and 60' deep. The building originally 
had a cast iron storefront, with a recessed entrancc, flanking display windows, transoms, and an 
entrance on the east, accessing thc second floor. In 1973, the storefront was replaced and 
reconfigured, Today, it retains its entrance to the second floor stairway, however the entrance to the 
shop space was moved to the west edge of the storefront. In the center of the facade are two large, 
aluminum-framcd display windows. A metal panel now covers the transom area. The second floor 
of the facade is intact, featuring four, segmentally arched, one-over.-one windows, with stone 
keystones. Above the windows are recessed stone pancls. Rock-faced stonc bands extend above and 
below the windows, and above the recessed panels. Originally, the Walton block had a pressed metal 
cornice and crest. These details were lost in the 1920s. At the sides of the facade are brick and stone 
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piers that rise to the top of the cornice. The rear wall was rebuilt in 1998, with a modern steel door 
on each floor, two sliding windoYIS on the second floor, and vinyl siding was applied. 

Next to the Lancaster Block, the Walton Block is the second oldest business block in the 
district. Although it and the adjacent building read as one continuous structure, they are two different 
structures, built two years apart. Thomas Walton built this structure, the original Wahon Block, in 
1891. The structure to the west was built two years later, in 1893. The 1893 Sanborn Atlas shows 
a bank in the Walton Block, however, there is no other evidence indicating that there was a bank in 
Havelock prior to 1900. Conformable early tenants include a bakery in 1903, a confectioner and 
cigar manufacturer in 1904, a mcat market in 1906, Havelock Building & Loan in 1909, and a 
restaurant in 1912. Dr. Harry Fulton also had an office on thc sccond floor from 1905 through the 
late 1910s. Other businesses to have located in the building over the years include several variety 
stores in the 1920s and 30s and a few restaurants in the 1940s and 50s. Since 1964, the Walton Block 
has been the site of a bakery. 

LC13:G14-009 (contributing) 
Old loyo Theater 
6121 Havelock Avenue 
ca. 1910 

The Old Joyo Theater is a two-story, flat-roofed, brick commercial building, with a one-story 
wing behind it. The fonner theater has a rectangular plan and its overall dimensions are 25' wide by 
90' deep. The storefront, which was originally recessed several feet back from the facade, has been 
altered and today, it is flush with the facade. The shop front has two entrances on the cast, one that 
has been boarded over, which leads to a stairway to the second floor and one that accesses the shop 
space. The rest of the storefront is comprised of three large display windows. For a brief time in the 
1920s, a marquee projected out over the sidcwalk, however, it was gone by the end of the decade. 
The uppcr story of the facade is intact. It has four regularly spaced double-hung window that set 
under wide hood. The cornice consists ofa course ofrowlock and some corbelling. The rear wall of 
the two-story portion ofthe building is sheathed with corrugated metal. The addition in back is a tall, 
one-story, brick structurc. It has a window on each sidewall, and a modern door and a tall garage on 
its back wall. Thc height of this structure is accounted for by the fact that it was once used as a 
theater. 

Thomas Walton built the Joyo Theater around 1910. The structure was briefly uscd as a 
saloon and real estate officc, before the loyo Theatcr opened in 1912. The theatcr remained in this 
location until 1937, when it moved across thc street into the much largcr Lyric Theater building. 
After the theater movcd across the street, thc loyo remained vacant until Wyman's Furniture and 
Electric Applianccs opened in the building in 1942. In the 1950s, a Sherwin-Williams paint store 
replaccd the furniture store, and rcmained in the building into the 1970s. Since 1995, Northern 
Exposure, a hair salon and tanning studio has bcen located in the building. 
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LCI3:GI4-010 (contributing) 
Ctandail Building 
6125 Havelock Avenue 
E.C. Schroeder. contractor 
1938 

The Crandall Building is a small, one-story. buff colored brick, commercial building with 
Spanish Colonial Revival detailing. The building has a rectangular plan, a flat roof, and it measures 
25' wide and 30' deep. The facade consists of one storefront flanked by brick piers. The storefront 
has an offset entrance flush with the facade, narrow and wide display windows on the east, and a 
wide display window on the west. A band ofsoldier brick is located above the storefront, along with 
a projected panel bordered by rowlock. The brick piers flanking the facade, rise above the comice 
and are topped with stone coping. Between the piers, apolychromatic Spanish tile mansard roofcaps 
the facade. The rear ofthe building is constructed from hollow tile, and is punctuated by two large 
window openings, a narrow window, and an entrance. 

This lot was originally the site ofa saloonlbilliard parlor that was called the Havelock Barrel 
House. The tavern opened in 1892 in a brand new two-story, false-front eommercial building. The 
saloon, whose name implied that it, served draft beer, remained in business through the mid-1900s. 
In 1938, the wood framed building was razed and the current structure was ereeted. Its draws its 
inspiration from the Jewel (Joyo) Theatre, whieh was built across the street nearly a decade earlier. 
The Crandall Building was the only structure built in the district between annexation and the 
eonelusion of World War II. Since its completion in 1938, the building has contained a doetor's 
office, 1938-61; a dentist's offiee, 1938-48; and an attorney's offiee in the 1960s. More recently, the 
building has been oeeupied by The Goldworks jewelry store and since 1997, an insuranee agency. 

LC 13:Gl4-011 (compatible) 
Kontras Building 
6127 Havelock Avenue 
Sampson Construction, eontractor 
1962 

This building is aone-story, rectangular shaped, brick and masonry structure, with a flat roof. 
The structure measures 25' x 100' in size. The facade is built from red brick and it eontains two 
symmetrical storefronts. Each storefront has a large plate glass display window and a metal-framed 
door with transom. The facade has an unadorned flat parapet that helps make this structure blend in 
with the older buildings in the district. The side and rear walls of this building are of cinder block 
construction. The exposed portion ofthe west wall is windowless, while the rear wall contains two 
four-light windows and the reomant of a filled-in doorway. 

This was the last building constructed during the district's second era of development, 
replacing a small, one-story, wond structure that was built around 1903 and demolished in 1962. 
Albert J. Baker, a real estate agent, built the original structure on this site for use as an office. The 
existing building was built for Gus Kontras in 1962, at a eost of $12,000. The building's western 
storefront was occupied by ajewelry store for many it years and it is now an office for the Edward 

-8­



Jones Investment Co. The eastern shop spacc has contained a television shop, a Lincoln Electric 
Systcm office, and it now houses the Havelock Dental Group. Although it is nearly seventy years 
younger than some buildings in the district, the size, scale, and matcrials incorporated into this 
building make it compatible with the district. 

LC13:G14-012 (compatible) 
Carlton Building 
6133 Havelock Avenue 
Kingcry Construction Co" contractor 
1955 

Thc shoc shop is a one~story, 25' x 100', rectangular shaped, masonry building, with a flat 
roofand a Penna-Stone facade. The storefront is slightly recessed; more so on the cast than the west. 
The principal facade is a typical. mid 20th century storefront with large aluminum-framed display 
windows, separated by thin mullions. A metal-framed glass door, with a transom, is located on the 
east edge of the storefront. A nat parapet tops the facade. The east wall is windowless and the 
northern three-fourths of the wall has been stuccoed. The rear wall (south) has steel entry door and 
a band of ribbon windows, which havc bcen filled in. 

The original building on this site was the J.B. Headrick Building; a two~story, wood~framed 

structure built in 1903. The building first housed the Headrick Pool Room and a tobacco shop. Later 
tenants included several grocers, a restaurant, a cleaners, a liquor store, and Goodwill store. This 
structure was razed in the early 1950s. The current building was oonstructed for Carlton Shoe Store 
in 1955 for $14,000. In 1986, the shoe shop was taken over by new owners and renamed Haney 
Shoes. Haney Shoes has remained in the building ever since. This building is compatible with many 
of the early buildings in the distriet, despite the fact it was constructed during the district's second 
period of development. 

LC13:G14-013 (eompatible) 
Site of the Havelock Building & Loan Association 
6137 Havelock Avenue 

The Haveloek Bank uses this lot as a parking lot for its customers. Although it is paved, is 
has the appearance of a vacant lot, something that has historieally been a feature of the distriet. The 
first structure on this site was a small, one~story, wood~frame office built between 1894 and 1903. 
About 1906 a two~story eonerete bloek structure was built on this siteIt originally housed the 
Havelock Building and Loan Association on the first floor and P.L. Webster Jewelry on the upper 
floor. Havelock Building and Loan Association moved out in 1915 and the structure became a 
restaurant and lounge in the 1920s. The building was expanded inl935 and demolished in 1970 to 
create more parking for Havelock Bank. Though the lot is considered non~eontributing, vacant lots 
traditionally been present along Havelock Avenue and this is a modem day example of that. 
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LC13:Gl4-014 (intrusive) 
Havelock Bank 
6145 Haveloek Avenue 
1957,1988 

The Havelock Bank is aone-story, flat-roofed, masonry building that has been altered many 
times throughout its existence. Today, the building is a eompilation of numerous remodeling 
campaigns, which are reflected in its very eclectic appearance. The appearance of the principal 
facade dates back to 1988, when it was extensively remodeled. The facade has an entrance on the 
east and series of deeply recessed tall, narrow windows set between polished granite clad piers. A 
full-width canopy is located over the storefront. It has a shed roof, a front gable over the entrance 
and two digitaJ clocks on the west. The east facade is secondary to the Havelock Avenue facade. This 
facade is constructed from Penna-Stone and it has six modem windows spaced along it. The west 
and rear \Villi are stucco, with an anodized metal cornice located above. The west wall has centrally 
located large ocular window. The rear facade has a doorway, a night deposit box, and a drive-up 
teller window. A three-lane "drive-thru" teller structure is located behind the building. The structurc, 
which spans the automobile lanes, consists ofa canopy suspended over four columns. Although no 
longer recognizable in its original form. the size and scalc ofthe bank make it compatible with the 
district. 

This promincnt comer has seen many buildings come and go. The first structure erected on 
the comer lot was a one-story frame lunchroom constructed about 1902 by William Tucker. A onc­
story, wood building was built on the adjacent lot in 1903. On May 18, 1909, the Citizens State Bank 
was organized and soon after it was chartered it razed the comer building and erected asmall, Neo­
classically style briek bui Iding in its place. In May of 1910, thc bank changed its name to the First 
National Bank ofHavelock, and in 1931 it was reorganized as the Havelock National Bank. In 1955, 
the bank razed both the 1909 building and the adjacent 1903 structure and subsequently erected the 
currcnt bank building. tn 1998, the bank, which was simply called Havelock Bank, changed its name 
to Pinnacle Bank. 

LC13:G14-015 (compatible) 
Sitc of the Y.W.C.A. Building 
4330 N. 62nd Street 

This site, which is now a parking lot for thc Lancaster Block. was the original site of the 
Young Womens Christian Association (Y.W.C.A.) in Havelock. The building that stood on this sitc 
was a one-story, 36' x 24'. rectangular shaped structure ofhollowtile construction with three narrow 
storefronts facing 62nd Street. Unfortunately, the building stood mostly vacant for many years, 
before the Havelock Y.W.C.A. opened in it in the mid-1940s. The Y.W.C.A. was locatcd in this 
small building for nearly three decades, before moving to a new facility in the 1970s. The building 
was dcmolished in 1977 to create a parking lot for the Lancaster Block, which is located on the 
northern part of this lot. 
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LC 13:Gl4-016 (contributing) 
Gregg BuildinglI.O.O.F. Hall 
6209 Havelock Avenue 
1908 

The fonner I.O.O.F. Hall is atwo-story, flat-roofed, Neo-classically styled brickconunercial 
building, with a rare concrete facade. The building has a rectangular plan and measures 25' x 100' 
in size. The structure's unusual principal facade is eonstructed from rusticated concrete block with 
moulded details. The building has a recessed storefront. with two entrances set on the east edge of 
the facade, one opening into the shop space and the other accessing a stairway to the second floor. 
Large display windows span the rest ofthe storefront. The transom area over the storefront has been 
filled in with concrete block. The second floor has four large, regularly spaced, window openings. 
An entablature, comprised of intricately moulded concrete castings, completes the facade. The 
architrave features dentils and bands, the frieze is ornamented with fcstoons, and thc cornicc is 
decorated with both egg and dart mouldings and banding. The side and rear walls are built from 
common orange brick. The east wall has astepped parapet and several brickcd-in window openings, 
one on the first floor and thrcc on the second. The rear wall has a central door, with a two-light 
window on cithcr side on the first floor and four large, regularly spaccd window openings on the 
second floor. Thc principal facade will undergo a sympathetic rehabilitation in 1999. This project 
will includc rcopening the second floor windows, removing mctal pancls that conceal parts of the 
storefront, and repainting the peeling surfaces, which will improve the appearancc and integrity of 
this building. 

This building was constructed for Arthur Betz1s Furniture Store in 1908, for an estimated cost 
of$8,OOO. Although the Betz store was short-Iivcd, the building remained in use as a furniture store 
through 1930. Furniture stores include Gregg Furniture, 1910-18; Dowd Furniture, 1921-23; and 
McKee Furniture, 1925-30. Other tenants included the Meyer-Barr Hardware Co., 1934; Cash 
Supply Store, hardware, 1936-38; and Harry Parker's billiards hall, mid-1940s-1955. From 1956 
through the early 1990s several cafes were located in the storefront, including Joyce & Eddie's Cafe, 
John Hobb's Cafe, and the Casey Jones Depot Restaurant. The l.O.O.F., Lodge #244, purchased the 
building in 1921 and used the second floor as a meeting hall until 1990. Since 1991, the building has 
been owned by the Shari Shell True Dance Academy. 

LCI3:GI4-017 (compatible) 
Kite Building 
6213-17 Havelock Avenue 
Lincoln Sales & Construction. contractor 
1962 

This building is a small, rectangular shaped, flat roofcd, 141x 68' one-story commercial 
building. Unlikc othcr buildings in the district, thc principal facade of this structure is orientcd 
towards the long side of the building structure, rather than towards the street. The building is of 
masonry eonstruction with a brick veneer on its east and north facades. The principal facade (east) 
is divided into three bays. Each bay has an entrance, a medium sized window, and an aireonditioner 
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hatch. A continuous roof overhang completes the facade. The secondary (street facing) facade 
contains a largc window with a concrete sill. The rear farrrade is a windowless, masonry block wall. 

This building was constructed in 1962 at a cost of $6,000. It replaced a small, wood-framed 
structure that was constructed circa 1904 to house a real estate office and later a restaurant, a 
cleaners, and a shoe repair shop. Early tenants of the current structure includc the Royal Barbcr 
Shop, la-Ree Styling Salon, and Keep-V-Neat Cleaners & Laundry. More recent tenants include a 
book store, a philanthropic foundation, and a hair salon. This building is considered non-contributing 
due to its date of construction, its non-street facing orientation, and beeause of its small scale. 

LC 13:014-048 (intrusive) 
Safeway Grocery StorelMisty's Restaurant 
6235 Haveloek Avenue 
a.N.B. Hazen, arehitect 
Kingery Const. Co., contractor 
1940 

The fonner Safeway Store is a one-story, mid-Twentieth Century eommercial building 
constructed ofbrick, steel, stucco, and concrete block, with additions on the east and south. The main 
portion ofthe building is 50' wide and 130' deep. The principal, north, facade has a primary bay, set 
between brick piers, and a narrow and shorter foyer addition on the east. The facade has been 
extensively remodeled. It now has a full-width brick bulkhead, slucco panels in place of the display 
windows, and a metal signband below the stueeoed corniee. The foyer has a large window and a 
transomed entranee. On the east, the main structure is stuccoed and it has six bays, separated by 
pilasters, The foyer extends along the three northern bays and it also has an entranee on this faeade. 
A shorter, 30' deep by 175' addition is loeated on the back of the building. The east, north, and west 
walls of this strueture are briek, while the rear, alley-facing wall is conerete block. The rear wall of 
the main building is ofconerete block construction and it features a stepped parapet. The west facade 
of the main portion of the building is similar to the east facade, but without the foyer addition. 

Safeway Stores, a regional grocery chain, spent $16,000 to ereet this building in 1940. The 
company, whieh had operated a store across the street in the Purbaugh Building, since the 1920s, 
deeided to build this store when it outgrew its existing space. The grocery store remained in its new 
building until it closed its doors in the mid-1970s. In 1977, the building was converted into Misty's 
Restaurant. Misty'S, a popular Lincolndiningestablishment, has occupied the building for more than 
twenty years. 
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NORTH SIDE OF THE AVENUE 
LC13:G15-002 (compatible) 
Mozer Building 
6024 Havelock Avenue 
Wilson Concrete Co., contractor 
1951 

The Mozer Building is a simple, one-story, flat-roofed, brick and masonry, commercial 
building, with a rectangular plan, measuring 24' wide and 80' deep. The principal facade is brick, 
with a single entrance door and a large, alwninwn-framed display window. Soldier brick lintels 
accent the openings. The facade has a flat cornice that is capped by concrete coping. The side and 
rear walls are ofconcrete block construction. The west is fenestrated with seven, four-light windows, 
while the rear wall contains a double door entrance. 

This structure replaced a one-and·a-half story, framed building constructed around 1900. 
Over the years, the original building housed the Havelock Times, 1911-27; a Beatrice Creamery Co. 
store, 1932-33; and several produce markets. The currentstructW'e was constructed in 1951, making 
it the first postwar era building to be constructed in the district. It was built by Wilson Concrete for 
about $6,700. Although it was initially constructed as a bakery, the building had been converted into 
a machine shop by the mid-19S0s.ln ]958, the building was converted into a Laundromat and it has 
remained in this use ever since. 

LCI3:G15-003 (contributing) 
Havelock Engine House 
6032 Havelock Avenue 
James Tyler and Son, architects 
1900 

The Old Havelock Engine House is a tall, one-story, Romanesque styled, brick building with 
a flat roof. The fonner fire station is 25' x 801 in size, of rectangular plan, with an orangish-red 
colored, rock-faced brick facade. A large opening topped by a Roman arch is located in the center 
of the facade. This opening originally had a pair of large, half-arched doors that were big enough for 
a fire engine to pass through. The doors were removed years ago, but have been replaced by a wood 
and glass panels that replicate the appearance ofthe original doors. Transomed entrance doors, with 
thick stone lintels, flank the garage door. Stringcourses are located above and below the transoms, 
and below the cornice. A panel is located over the garage door. It originally said "Engine House 
1900,n but now says "Engine House Cafe." The cornice has corbelling, stone coping, and a flat 
parapet. The exposed portions of the north, east, and west walls have been stuccoed. The rear wall 
has three large, segmentally arched window openings that have been bricked-in. The building was 
expanded to its present size in 1928, when an addition was constructed on the rear of the building. 
The fire station originally had a large bell tower, located near the front of the building, which no 
longer exists. The tower served a dual pwpose, acting as both a bell towcr and as a place to hang fire 
hoses to dry. 
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The Engine House was originaJly designed in 1899 as an elegant two-story strueture, but it 
was scaled down in 1900. The result was the simple, one-story, building that exists today. As built, 
the engine house was much more indicative of the values of the townspeople of Havelock, than the 
original design was. The building housed the Havelock Fire Department from 1900 thmugh 1930. 
From 1930 until 1972, the Lineoln Fire Department continued to use the engine house as a fire 
station. In 1972, the Salvation Annyaequired the engine house and converted it into a second hand 
store. This store remained in the building until 1991. In 1992, the former engine house was sold to 
anew owner, who carefully restored it to its near original appearanee. Since 1992, the Engine House 
Cafe has oeeupied the building. 

LC 13:G15-004 (eontributing) 
Old Havelock City HalllJail 
6034 Haveloek Avenue 
ca. 1913 

The Havelock City Hall is a one-story, rectangular shaped, flat-roofed building that is 25' x 
120' in size. The building is constructed from reddish-orange pressed brick set in running bond, with 
raked joints. The structure has asymmetrieaJ facade that has acentral entrance with atransom, which 
is flanked, by two-light windows with stone sills. The cornice features string courses, corbelled 
denticulars, and stuccoed coping. A modem, illwninated sign band spans the facade, below the 
cornice, concealing some dogtooth brickwork. The exposed northern portion ofthe west wall, which 
has been stuccoed, has two segmental windows that have been filled in. The rear wall contains an 
overhead garage door and an entry door. 

The Havelock City Hall appears to have been constructed for $3,500 in 1913. The front 
portion of the building contained a recreation room/meeting space and the rear part of the structure 
contained the jail. The building served as the Haveloek City Hall and Jail (Police Station) from 1913 
until 1930. In 1930 the building was taken over by the Lincoln Fire Department, who used it until 
1972. The Salvation Anny took over the building in 1972 and extensively remodeled the facade. The 
Salvation Anny moved out of the building in 1991 and sold it a year later. The new owner 
subsequently restored the principal facade to its near-original appearance. Since 1993, the fonnercity 
hall has housed WolfTackle Supply. 

LCI 3:G15-005 (contributing) 
Masonic Temple 
6036 Havelock Avenue 
1912 

The Masonic Temple is a two-story, rectangular shaped, flat roofed building, with an 
unusually tall second floor. The building is 40' x 120' in size, with. facade constructed from reddish­
orange pressed brick, with raked joints, and secondary walls built from orange brick. The facade is 
divided into two bays, set between brick piers that rise above the cornice. In 1992 the building's two 
storefronts were remodeled, and returned to a more original appearance. The western storefront 
consists of a recessed, central entrance with narrow display windows on either side, or transom 
windows above. The eastern storefront has a large, display window, with atransom. on the west and 
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a wide, recessed entrancc area on the east, containing a bank of mailboxes where the store entrance 
was and an entrance opening to the second floor stairwell. The second floor has four double-hung 
windows, two in each bay. All have limestone sills and a soldier brick lintels. Above the windows 
there is some banding and a course ofdentils. What appears to be an unusually tall cornice conceals 
the vaulted ceilings of the second floor meeting hall. This area is decorated with a slightly projected 
rectangular element. The use of small windows on the second floor shows the impact of electric 
lighting on the design of this building. Earlier meeting halls would have had very tall widows that 
let light into the inner depths ofthe room, however, with electric lights this was no longer a concern. 
The cornice is ornamented with deticular brickwork, corbels, and stone coping. Another notable 
feature of this building is the large signs paintcd on the sides ofthe building. The east wall contains 
the remnants of a Coca-Cola and an H.F. Hecht sign. The west facade has a polychromatic Martha 
Gooch sign and the ghost ofanother on it. In addition to the signs, the sidewalls also contain several 
flat-headed, second story windows. The rear of the building has three segmentally arched, second 
floor windows, along with a modem fire escape and doorways that were installed in 1967. 

The George and Martha Washington Lodges of the Fraternal Order of Masons had the 
Masonic Temple built in 1912, for $14,000. The Masons used the second floor of the building for 
their activities through the early 1990s. Afterwards, the hall was divided up and converted into seven 
apartments. Over the years, the Masons leased the first floor retail space to a variety of tenants, the 
first of which was H.F. Hecht's grocery store, whose signage is still faintly visible on the building's 
west wall. In 1928 the Interstate Newspaper Co., publisher ofthe Havelock Times Post, moved into 
the building. The company printed the Times Post until 1933, after which it published the Capitol 
Farm and Home News until 1938, when changed the name to the Lincoln Farm and Home News. 
In 1948, the printing company vacated the premises and the storefront remained empty most ofthe 
1950s and 1960s. The most recent business to occupy the storefront was Callahan's Variety Store, 
from 1992 to 1994. 

LC13:G15-006 (contributing) 
Johnson Building 
6042 Havelock Avenue 
ca. 1920 

The Johnson Building is a one-story, flat roofed, rectangular shaped, brick commercial 
building with Neo-classical detailing. The building is 35' wide, 120' deep. The principal, south, 
facade and the secondary facade on the east, are dark brown brick. The principal facade has a 
tripartite fonn with two wide bays and a narrow entry bay on the west. The facade rests on a base 
that consists ofsoldier and rowlock courses, and the bays set between by brick pilasters. The narrow, 
western bay has a slightly recessed entry, accessed by two steps, a sidelight on the east and transom 
above. The wide bays contain large window openings, each with two lights separated by a mullion. 
The four pilasters rise above the windows and are capped by simple briek capitals that support a tall 
entablature. The entablature includes asoldier brick frieze, a stretcher bond architrave, and acornice 
with dentils and corbelling. The secondary, east, facade has an assymetrical fenestration pattern, 
which continues the stylistic treatment ofthe primary facade for two bays. These two bays are wider 
and they contain three-light windows. Only the base and cornice of the primary facade continue the 
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entire width of the east faced. From south to north, the third bay has a transomed doorway and a 
double-hung window. There appears lo have originally been a garage door that now contains a small 
storefront consisting of a door way with transom and narrow display windows on each side. The 
northern third ofthe facade is fenestrated by a transomed entrance and three double-hung windows. 
The north wall has an entry door, a large overhead door, and a small addition with a shed roof and 
an overhead door. 

This building replaced the Havelock House, later the Central Hotel; a two-story frame boarding 
house built in 1891. The existing building appears to have been ereeted in around 1920. Upon its 
completion, the building was used for storage until 1923, when Knoll's Garage opened in it. Thc 
building remained in use as a garage, and briefly as a Chevrolet dealership, into the 1940s. In 1946 
Therien Frozen Food Lockcr lcased the building and converted it inlo a food locker. A food locker, 
along with a cabinet shop remained in the building through the 1960s. More recent tenants have 
included arcade game dealer, a golfshop, a vacuwn cleaner repair shop, and most recently a a vinyl 
siding and windows dealer. 

LC13:G15-007 (contributing) 
Lyric/Joyo Theater 
6102 Havelock Avenue 
ca. 1928 

Thc Joyo is one of Lincoln's best examples ofthc Spanish Colonial Revival style applicd to 
a commcrcial structure. The 40' x 105' theatre is characterized by its white stucco exterior and red 
tile roof. The building has a typical thcatre stylc facade, with a tripartite form consisting ofa recessed 
central entrance bay, flankcd by narrow storefront bays. A ticket booth, flankcd by recessed double 
door cntrances, is located in the center of the facade. Thc booth is clad with polychromatic ccramic 
tile and has tall windows on all three sides. The recessed areas around thc entrances are finished with 
red tile (terra cotta). The two theatre entrances have paired doors. Each door has a large half-circle 
window that faces the adjacent door. The side bays have pilasters that risc above the 5ecQnd floor, 
flowing into Roman arches. At street level, a display window and entry adorn each storefront. A 
large, projecting marquee, remodeled in 1956, spans the facade. Centered above the marquee, "Joyo" 
is spelled out in neon channellcttcrs and "theatre" is spelled out in script on the marquee. Greck­
inspired theatrical facial caricaturcs outlined in neon also adorn this part ofthe marquee. Above the 
storefronts, the marquee is taller, with large illuminated signboards and the word "JOYO" spelled 
out in large channcllctters illwninated by small bulbs. On thc second floor the side bays have two 
windows and the central bay has three, all of which have a round topped configuration (a Roman 
arch upper sash). The cornice is claborated by a simple denticular pattern. The center bay has a rcd 
tile mansard roof. The side bays are taller, creating a twin tower effect, and have red tilc hip roofs. 
The west, north, and east walls are stuccoed cinder block and the auditoriwn has a barrel roof. A 
door and two small windows are located on the west facadc, near the front ofthe building. The north 
wall has a stepped parapet, two fIre exits, and a small, one-story, rectangular shaped addition that 
has a gable roof. 
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The theater was constructed for Volney Headrick in 1928, replacing two wood-framed false­
front structures that occupied the site. Originally named the Lyric Theatre, the movie house only 
operated a short time before closing. In 1936Raymond Williamson, proprietor ofthe loyo purchased 
the building, which was located across the street at 6121 Havelock Avenue. Williamson moved his 
theater into the building and it has remained in business as the loyo Theatre ever since. Over the 
years the small shop spaces have contained a barber shop, a confectioner, a restaurant, and even a 
computer business. The theater retains a high degree of integrity. 

LC13:Gl5-008 (contributing) 
Headrick Cafe 
6106 Havelock Avenue 
ca. 1928 

Perhaps one of the smallest storefronts in all Lincoln, this surprisingly narrow, one-story 
building is 10' wide and 55' dccp. Thc building has a rectangular plan, with a flat roof, and a stuccoed 
facade. The building has a metal canopy, entrance, and wide sidclights, all later additions. The rear 
of the building is stuccoed and has a single entry. 

This building was built about the same time that the Lyric (loyo) was constructed next door. 
Early pictures show that the original facade of this building was cxccuted in thc Spanish Colonial 
Revival style, making it stylistically contiguous with the Lyric (Joyo). The small storefront originally 
had a door to one side, a display window, and transom. The building had a tile roof and corbels on 
its cornice. The building contained a restaurant for more than twenty years, operated by different 
individuals, including William Headrick, 1929-35; Volney Headrick, 1936-37; Frances Humble, 
1938 until the mid-40s; Leonard Teague in the late 1940s; and Mrs. Hedwick Ludkc in thc carly 
1950s. Later tenants have included an optomctrist, thc LcModemc Sbop, a State Fann Insurance 
office, and thc House of Gems jewelry store. Wild Hair Barber Shop now occupies the building. 

LCI3:Gl5-009 (contributing) 
Old Havelock Post Office 
6112 Havelock Avenue 
1903 

Like the Walton Block across the street, what appears as one building is actually two. This 
building, the Old Post Office, was built in 1903, and thc building to the west was erected in 1905. 
The Old Post Office is a two-story, flat roofed, brick business block with stone and pressed metal 
trim. The building has a rectangular plan and measures 25' x 551 in size. The building has one 
storefront, with a recessed entrance, flanked by large display windows, and an entrance on the west 
that opens to a stairway to the second floor. Although it retains its original configmation, brick 
bulkheads, ametal and glass door, and the bricking-in of the transom area have altered the storefront. 
A metal canopy, added in thc 1950s, extends the width of the facade, bclow the transom and a stone 
band cxists near the top of the transom area. Thc sccond floor retains its original configuration of 
four, regularly spaced segmental-hcaded, double-hung windows, with rock-faced stone sills. A 
pressed metal cornice, with brackcts and finials at the comers, complete the facade. A pressed metal 
crcst, which bore the inscription "Post Office, 1903," has long since been removed. The principal 
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facade has also been painted a "briek red" eolor. The exposed west and north walls have been 
stueeoed. The rear wall has three segmental windows and a door on each floor. 

Upon its completion in 1903, this building beeame the second structure to house the 
Havelock Post Office. The Post Office remained in the building until 1917, when it moved into the 
new Schmidt Bros. Building. Early second floor tenants include a real estate office in 1904 and a 
doctor's office in the late 1900s. The Haveloek Building & Loan Associatio~ Bert Anderson Real 
Estate Offiee, and the Haveloek Commercial Club all leased space on the second floor in the early 
1910s, before this floor was converted into apartments in the 1920s. After the Post Office moved 
out in 1917, the building saw a variety of other tenants, including a barber shop from 1929 until 
1948. Other businesscs that leascd space in the building during this time includes a shoe repair shop, 
two insurance agencics, several cleaners, and a series of restaurants, the most recent of which was 
LaPaloma, a Mexican restaurant. 

LCI3:Gl5-0 10 (contributing) 
Anderson & Hunt Block 
6116 Havelock Avenue 
1905 

This building was designed to look like a continuation of the Post Office, which was 
constructed two years earlier. Like the Old Post Office, this building is a two-story, flat-roofed 
business block, constructed from orangish colored brick. The building has a rectangular plan and its 
dimensions are 25 1 x 70" making it slightly larger than its older counterpart. Although it has been 
altered, the storefront still retains its original configuration. The storefront consists of a recessed 
entrance with display windows on both sides, and an entrance on the west, which opens to a second 
floor stairway. The transom area has been covered over with metal panels and the wood bulkheads 
have been replaced by brick elements. A stone band is located near the top of the transom area. The 
second floor retains its original configuration of four, segmentally-arched, double-hung windows 
equally spaced across the facade, which unlike the Post Office, have stone sills with a smooth finish 
instead of a rock-faced finish. A pressed metal cornice, with brackets and finials at the corners, 
oompletc the facade. A pressed metal crest, inscribed with the words"Alexander and Hunt," was 
removed years ago. The exposed portions ofthc side and rear walls have been stuccoed. The rear 
wall has two segmentally arched windows and door on each floor, while the west wall has only two 
small, segmcntal windows on the second floor. 

A large, I1h-story, gable roofed, corrugated metal shed, with a large sliding dooron the north 
and a Dutch door on thc west, is located behind the main building. The shed appears to have been 
built sometime between 1910 and 1927, make it a contributing element of the district. 

Bascd on deed records and newspaper accounts, it appears that the Anderson & Hunt 
Building was completcd in 1905 at a cost of $4,000. The first traccable business to locate in the 
building was Warga's Grocery Store from 1910 until 1914, which was replaced by W.A. Shuler's 
confectionery during the late 191Os. From the early 1920s through the early 1940s, several 
restaurants were located in the building. In 1942, a Salvation Army Store was located in the building. 
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In 1946, Havelock New & Used Clothing opened in the building, and stayed in it into the 1970s. 
Since the 1980s, Allied Appliance has occupied the building. 

LC13:Gl5-01l (eontributing) 
Basket Store #11 
6118 Havelock Avenue 
ca. 1910 

The Basket Store is a one-story, 25 1 x 100', rectangular shaped, brick commercial building 
with aflat roofandconerete trim. The building has aunique facade, constructed from ashiny, white­
glazed brick that is an unusual building material in Lincoln. The facade has a centrally located, 
recessed, V-shaped entrance with sidelights and a transom. Storefront display windows flank the 
entrance. The cornice is consists of egg and dart, and Neo-classical mouldings. Above the cornice 
is a simplified, flat parapet that features gray colored brick, topped by concrete coping A modem 
vinyl canopy now spans the facade. The rear waJ I, which has been stuccoed, contains a modern door. 
The exposed portion ofthe west wall has also been stuccoed. 

The first tenant ofthis building appears to have been Hmvey Burton's grocery store, which 
occupied the building in 1913. The next business to locate in the building, according to a December, 
1914 lease agrecment, was a small grocery store called Baskct Storc No. II. lbis was thc clevcnth 
store in a small chain, founded by James Burleigh. The stores first appeared in about 1912 and by 
1918, there were nearly twenty ofthem in and around the city ofLincoln. Basket Store #11 remained 
in business though 1922, when it was taken over by Glen Fordyce, who operated it under his name 
until 1929. The little store stood vacant for most ofthc early 1930s. A billiards hall was located in 
the building from 1935 through the mid-1940s, when it was replaced by a Gambel's Store. In thc 
1950s, the building was taken ovcr by Havelock Hardware & Supply, a predeccssor of Wolfs Ace 
Hardware, which now occupies the building. 

LC13:G15-012 (compatible) 
Baker Building 
6120 Havelock Avenue 
W.J. Assenmacher Construction Co., contractor 
1945/1960 

lbis building evolved into existenee in amost pcculiar way. The original building on this site 
was a two-story, wood-framed structure built in 1892. In 1945, the building received a new brick 
venccr facadc and a one-story, concrete block garage was built onto the back of it. In 1960, the 
original, wood-frame structure was demolished, leaving only the facade and the garage in place, and 
a new, two-story, steel and concrete block structure was then built to replace the original building. 
A onc-story addition was also built next to the garage at this time. As it now exists, the Baker 
Building is a two-story, brick and concrete block, commercial building with a rectangular plan, flat 
roof, and stone trim. With the two one-story additions behind it, the building mcaswes 50' x 112' in 
size. Sincc the facade was originally a rcmodeling project, it retains the same configuration as the 
1892 building. The dark OIllnge, brick facade features two, 25' wide storefronts, set between brick 
piers, at ground level. The western storefront contains offset, recessed, V-shaped entrance, large 
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display windows on either side, and stone bulkheads. The eastern bay features large display 
windows, stone bulkheads, and an entrance recessed into the eastern edge of the facade. The piers, 
which rise to the second floor, rest on stone bases. The second floor has four pairs of regularly 
spaced, one-oYer-one, double-hung windows and a continuous stone sill band. The windows are 
further accented with soldier brick lintels and ornamental shutters. A flat parapet and stone coping 
cap the faeade. The rear wall ofthe two-story section ofthe building has four sets ofpaired windows 
and two doors. A stairway behind the building provides access to the second floor apartments. 

Albert Baker, an insurance and real estate agent, erected the original building on this site in 
1892 and shared it with a Justice of Peace until 1901. During the early 1900s, the building was 
occupied by a laundry, a restaurant, a bakery/confectioner, and a jeweler, before it becwne the 
original home ofHitchcock Pharmacy, which opened in 1907.1n 1914, Baker Pharmacy moved into 
the original building, remaining in this location for nearly sixty years, before closing its doors in 
1973. ln 1974, a branch of the State Federal Savings Bank, which later became American Charter 
Bank in 1988, replaced the pharmacy. American Charter closed in the early 1990s and since that 
time, the building has contained the offices of an accountant, a bookkeeper, and an attorney. 
Although the building is essentially a product of the district's second era of development, its size, 
scale, and materials make it compatible with the older buildings in the district. 

LC13:G15-013 (contributing) 
Jones Bakery and Anderson Hardware 
6128-32 Havelock Avenue 
ca. 1920 

Although this building reads as one unit, each halfwas actually constructed for a different 
owner. The building is a two-story, rectangular shaped, flat roofed, brick commercial building, 
measuring 50' wide and 78' deep. The building also has a one-story, brick addition behind it. The 
principal facade is symmetrically divided into two bays. separated by a brick pier. The western 
storefront retains its original configuration. with a recessed, V-shaped entrance near its center, large 
display windows to either side, and an entrance opening to a second floor stairway on the east, ncar 
the center of the facade. The eastern storefront has been altered. It has a series of large display 
windows and an entrance, flush with the facade, on the cast. There are four two-light windows above 
each storefront, making eight total second floor windows. The windows have stone sills and flat 
lintels. The cornice has an alternating pattern ofsawtooth corbels, which is a variation on the more 
common sawtooth mouldings found throughout the district. Above the cornice there is a flat parapet 
with stone coping. The west and rear walls arc built from common orange brick. The rear addition 
has two entrances into it. The west half of the building has a historic, small, wood-framed addition 
on the second floor, with three windows and an entry on its. The east halfof the north wall has two 
windows and a door on the second floor. 

The two lots, on which this building was constructed, have a very interesting history. The 
first structure on this site was a two-story frame building constructed on the east lot by H.N. 
Framstad in 1892. This building was razed in the early 1900s and replaced by a one-story, 50' wide 
brick building in 1902. Records are unclear whether this building was razed or ifa second story was 

-20­



added to it to create the existing two-story building, which was completed around 1920. Businesses 
that have existed in the western storefront include Robert Jones' bakery, 1904-17; alaundry company 
in 1912; and the Havelock Electric Light Co., 1913-1928. Iowa-Nebraska Light & Power Co., later 
Conswners Public Power District, used this storefront as an office from 1931 until 1964. Early 
tenants of the eastern storefront include a billiards hall, during most of the 1900s and 191Os, a 
general store in 1912, and a barberin 1913. In 1918, Cleos & Anderson, which becamc Anderson 
Hardware in 1926, opened in this space. This business, which operated in this location until 1959, 
is significant for its association with Victor Anderson. Victor was very politically active and served 
as a state senator, as Mayor ofLincoln, and as Governor ofNebraska in during the 1950s. Anderson 
Hardware moved to a new building just down the street in 1959. For the past decade, this storefront 
has been the location ofthe Havelock Chiropractic Center. 

LC13:Gl5-014 (contributing) 
Hitchcock Pharmacy 
6136 Havelock Avenue 
ca. 1910 

Rccords do not clearly indicate whether this building was constructed from the ground up, 
or if it was the product of adding a second story to an existing structure. Regardless, what exists 
today is atwo-story, reetangular shaped, 25' x 70', flat roofed building constructed from rough-faced 
brick. Astorefront spans the principal facade and features arecessed, V-shaped entrance in its center. 
with large display windows on either side. Although the storefront has been altered, it retains its 
original configuration. The transom area has been in filled with brick, but its outline is still visible. 
The second story has four; segmentally arched double-hung windows equally spaced apart. The 
cornice features a slightly recessed rectangular panel and checkerboard brickwork. The rear of the 
building has been stuccoed and has four rectangular shaped windows on the second floor and a 
small, corrugated metal addition (vestibule) on the first floor. 

The first building on this site was a two-story frame structure constructed about 1892. By 
1903, this building had been replaced by a one-story brick store. The two-story structure that exits 
today was completed around 1910, records do not clearly indicate whether a second story was added 
to the existing structure, or if an entirely new building was constructed in 1910. The first business 
traceable to this property was Henry Hecht's grocery store in 1903-04. Since 1905, the building has 
been occupied by a pharmacy. From 1905 until the early 1920s the building contained Hitchcock 
Pharmacy, which was operated by John Hitchcock who was both a druggist and president ofthe First 
National Bank ofHavelock. During the mid-1920s the drug store was called Pinkerton's Pharmacy 
and from 1928 until the 1950s it was George Scofield's Drug Store. Since 1960, the store has been 
named Havelock Pharmacy. 
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LC13:Gl5-015 (compatible) 
Moran BuildingfThe Vickeridge 
6140 Havelock Avenue 
ca. 1910/1990 

Although this structure looks like a briek eommercial building, it is actually a two-story, 
rectangular shaped, wood-framed eonunercial building with a flat roof, and a one-story addition to 
the rear. In 1990, a brick veneer, sensitive to other buildings in the district, was applied to the two 
street facing facades, south and east. Originally, the principal, south, facade had two storefronts, that 
have been remodeled into one storefront with two wide, three-pane display windows and a narrow, 
recessed entrance on the east. The entrance consists of a metal and glass door, sidelights, and a 
transom. There are four double-hung windows regularly spaced across the second floor, all with 
soldier brick lintels. The cornice, which consists of individual corbels, and the second floor window 
lintels are tan brick, while the rest ofthe facade is painted brick. The cast facade, which is secondary 
to the south facade, is veneered with orange colored brick and lacks fenestration on the ground floor, 
except for an entrance to the one-story addition at the north end ofthe facade. A belt course ofdark 
orange soldier brick is located between the first and second floors. Like the primary facade, the east 
facadc has four rcgularly spaced double-bung windows with tan brick sills and lintels. The rcar of 
the building is clad with vinyl siding. A stairway leads to a deck above the one-story addition that 
provides access to an apartment on the second floor ofthe building. The second floor has one regular 
doorway, a sliding glass door, and a small double-hung window. 

The original building on this site was a two-story frame building erected in 1893. In 1899, 
Cornelius Moran purchased the building and extensively rennovated part of it for use as a meat 
market. Records indicate that in 1910, the original building was replaced, apparently nearly in-kind 
by the structure that exists today. Early tenants of the building's western storefront included 
Hitchcock Pharmacy in 1904; Schuler Pharmacy in 1905-06; Hcnry Hccht's grocery store, 1907­
1912; Eugcnc Hubert's varicty srore, 1929-32; Homer Boswell, notions, 1934; and Fred Sieber's 
bamess shop from 1935 until 1957. Kames Drygoods Store occupied this shop space in the early 
1960s. From 1899 until 1915 thc castcm sromont contained Moran's Meat Market. Over the years, 
the eastern storefront has housed a variety of businesses including Dore & Lippert, a general store, 
in the late 19]os, which became a men's furnishings shop when Mr. Dore left the business in the 
I920s. Charles Lippert's shop remained in business through 1933. During the late 1930s and thc 
early l940s the shop space was leased to several grocery stores and in the late l940s it was occupied 
by a sccond hand store. From the 1890s through the mid-191Os, the one-story additon which faces 
63 rd Street, contained a harness maker/buggy dealer. Since 1971, the entire first floor has been 
occupied by the Vickerage, a womens clothing store. 

The Dullenty Hotel, a two-story frame structure built in 1892, originally stood on the north 
halfof these lots. The hotel, which changed hands in 1907, becoming the Jolmson Hotel, remained 
in business through 1923. The hotel stood empty during the late I 920s and early 1930s, before being 
converted into an apartment building in 1933. First called the Claremont Apartments, in 1941 it was 
renamed the Charlette Apartments, and in thc 1950s it bccamc the Charlotte Apartments. The old 
hotel was razcd in 1977 to makc way for a parking lot. 
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LC13:G15-016 (compatible) 
Anderson Building 
6200 Havelock Avenue 
Sid Campbell, architect 
Vietor Anderson, builder 
1959 

This 50' x 160' one~story. flat roofed building shows the influence that the automobile had 
on the design of commercial buildings after World War II. Prior to the war, commercial buildings 
were typically tall, Darrow structures, with large display windows on the ground floor, where stores 
could display their goods, and offices or apartments on the upper floors. With the coming of the 
automobile age, commercial buildings evolved into horizontally oriented structures, with wide 
display windows. These wide storefronts allowed for greater visibility from a moving car. This 
building follows that practice and has a continuous glass facade, with a central, double door entrance 
and transom. Three large display windows are located on each side of the entrance, separated by 
narrow mullions. A metal eanopy is suspended over the facade and, wraps around the southwest 
comer of the building. A corrugated metal signboard is located above the canopy, in place of a 
cornice. The secondary (west) and rear (north) facades are eonstructed ofbrick set in common bond. 
The west facade has a large display window on the south, a central entrance with sidelight and 
transom, and an overhead door on the north. A stone panel, inseribed with "Anderson 1959," is 
located above the central entrance on this ·wall. Corrugated metal panels are sited above the overhead 
door and the display window. The rear wall contains an overhead door. 

This building rcplaced two carly twentiethccntury wood-framed structures that were located 
on this site. The first building was built on the comer about 1901 and housed a saloon, before 
becoming a billiard parlor during the Prohibition Era. The second structure was constructed around 
1905 and had many different occupants, including a saloon, a pool hall, a cleaners, a clothier, a 
restaurant, and a shoe repair shop. These structures were razed in the mid-1950s. In 1959, after 
serving two consecutive, two-year terms as Governor of Nebraska, Havelock native Victor 
Anderson, returned to running his family owned hardware store in Havelock, located at 6132 
Havelock Avenue. One of his first tasks in 1959 was to have this building constructed, so that 
Anderson Hardware could expand. Anderson continued to run the hardware store until his death by 
heart attack in August 1962. After his death, Anderson Hardware closed its doors for good and 
Lawlor's Sporting Goods moved into the building. Today, the Anderson Building is the site of 
Havelock Furniture and Appliance. 

LCI3:G15-0l7 (contributing) 
Jewel Theater 
6208 Havclock Avcnuc 
1923 

The Jewel Theater is a three-story, rectangular plan, brick, commercial style building. The 
building has a flat roof, and a two-story and one-story addition behind it. Although it is three stories 
tall, this building is only slightly taller than. some of the large two-story buildings in the district. The 
theater has a 26' wide storefront, which consists ofa centrally located, recessed, V-shaped cntrancc, 
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flanked by large display windows. There is also a door on the west edge of the facade that originally 
accessed the theatre, which was located at the rear ofthe building. An aluminum canopy, dating from 
the eonstruetion of the Anderson Building in 1959, spans the facade. Although much simpler than 
some of the nineteenth century buildings in the distriet, the upper floors of the Jewel feature an 
ample amoWIt of brickwork. The seeond and third floor windows are set within a large, slightly 
projeeted, reetangular shaped element that features soldier and stacked briek, along with 
basketweave. The cornice consists of several eourses of low relief eorbelling. The sidewalls (east 
and west) have stepped parapets and a number of boarded-up windows on the third floor. The rear 
of the building steps downward from three to two to one story in height. An aluminum and glass 
door, with sidelights and a transom are located on the building's back wall. 

The Jewel replaced an 1892 false-front commereial building, whieh had been the site of a 
saloon, a restaurant, and a eonfeetionery shop. The theater was designed with a shop space in the 
front part of the first floor, a 350-seat theatre in the rear, and apartments on the upper floors. TJ. 
MeLaughlin opened the Jewel Theatre in 1923 and operated it though 1926, where upon he leased 
it to R. W. Williamson. Williamson ran the theatre for less than a year, before he elosed it in 1927 
and opened the Joyo Theatre, across the street to the south. From 1929 through 1933 the building 
eontained a series ofrestaurants, after whieh it stood vacant for several years. During the late 1930s 
and early I940s, the building eontained an auto shoplmotor eompany. For nearly fifty years the 
building housed one of two department stores. The first was, Hested's 5¢ and JO¢ Store, 1947-56, 
followed by a Ben Franklin Store, 1957-92. Haveloek Furniture and Appliance, which is located in 
the Anderson Building next door now uses the first floor as additional showroom space, while the 
upper floors eontain apartments. 

LC13:Gl5-018 (contributing) 
Cassidy Billiards Hall 
6212 Havelock Avenue 
ea. 1911 

This handsome little building is a 24' x 100', one-story, reetangular shaped, briek strueture 
with a fiat roof. The prineipal facade has a eentrally located, recessed, V-shaped entranee, with large 
display windows flanking it. Unlike most storefronts in the distriet. this storefront still retains its 
original wood bulkheads below the display windows. A wood panel now covers the transom 
windows. Like several other buildings in the district, the eorniee features dentils and sawtooth 
brickwork. The east wall, which features a step-down parapet, has had stowe applied and amodem 
door installed. The rear to the building has three tall, segmental arched window openings that are 
boarded over. 

This quaint building was originally owned by Grace BloWIt, who leased it to Ray Cassidy 
WItil he purehased it from her in 1919. Cassidy ran a billiards hall in the building for twenty-seven 
years, from 1913 until 1940. Robert Studinka acquired the lavern in 1940. When Mr. Studinka took 
over the bar, he allowed Mrs. Virgie Murphy to open a kitchen in the bar, however, her involvement 
ended in the 1950s. Mr. Studinka still ran the bar in the early 1970 and today it is now simply ealled 
Bob's Tavern. 
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1979 

LCI3:015-019 (compatible) 
Pedestrian Mall 
6214 Havelock Avenue 

This pedestrian mall was constructed to provide pedestrians with access to the district from 
aparking lot located on the north halfofthis block. The promenade is paved with brick, and eontains 
several plantings, which create park.1ike setting. The mall replaced a small, one-story brick 
eommereial building that was eonstructed circa 1909-1910. From the street, the mall looks like a 
vacant lot, which is often typieal feature of many small town main streets. The building had two 
small storefronts. The western storefront housed a number of barber shops over the years and a 
beauty shop after 1941. The eastern storefront contained many different businesses, including an 
eleetrieal eonttactor/real estate agent, 1914-29; a Beatriee Creamery cream station, 1929-31; 
Schoonover Oil Co., 1933-34; a liquorslore, 1936-40; and barber shops after 1941. The building was 
razed in 1979 to make way for the promenade. 

LC 13:015-020 (contributing) 
Purbaugh Building 
6220 Haveloek Avenue 
ca. 1911 

The Purbaugh Building is a 25' wide by 80' deep, two-story brick commercial style building 
with a one-story 25' x 20' addition to the rear. The 25' x 100' building has a reetangular plan and a 
flat roof. The facade is intact, except for new glazing in the first floor doors and windows. The first 
floor storefront has a recessed, V-shaped entrance in its center, bracketed by large display windows, 
and an entrance on the west, which opens to the second floor stairway. Tall transom windows and 
a metal lintel eomplete the storefront. Slightly projected pilasters that rise to the top of the comiee 
bracket the facade. The second floor has four large, six·over-six double-hung windows. The cornice 
has the same decorative brickwork that is found on several buildings in the district, which includes 
dentils, sawtooth moldings, and corbels that projects outward to become flush with the pilasters. The 
west wall was eonstrueted on top ofan existing one-story party wall, so the second story ofthe wall 
is thinner, with buttressing for support. The wall also features a modern door and a small window 
on the first floor, and a series ofsegmentally arched one-over-one windows on the second floor. The 
rear wall has three segmental window openings on the second floor, with one intact six-over-six 
window, and a modem window on the first floor. 

Based on a 1912 wall agreement, this building appears to have been constructed for J.R. 
Purbaugh between 1911 and 1912. Heehl's Department Store was the building's first tenant,leasing 
it in 1912. During the yearsI913-18, the building contained Theodore Jacob's clothing slore. A 
Safeway groeery store moved into the building in the 1920s and remained in it until a larger store 
was built across the street in 1940. Graft's Department Store was located in the building from 1941 
until the late 1950's. In 1962 the building became a Laundromat and it now houses the ofliees of 
Nebraskaland Steel Products. 
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LC13:G 15-021 (contributing) 
Joy General Store! Arrow Aircraft Office 
6222-24 Havelock Avenue 
ca. 1909 

This building is a one-story, flat roofed, brick commercial building with a 50' wide facade. 
The facade has two identical, 25' wide storefronts set between brick piers. Each storefront has a 
recessed, V-shaped, central entrance that is flanked by large display windows, and short transom 
windows. Like many early commercial buildings, the original display windows have been replaced 
by two smaller windows that are separated by a thin mullion. Additionally, metal insulation panels 
have replaced the transom windows. The area above the storefront is slightly recessed, and the 
cornice has the same denticular, sawtooth, and corbelling pattern that is found on several other 
buildings on this blockface. The east half of the building is 80' deep and has a single entry door in 
back, while the western half is 140' in length, with a double door entrance on its rear wall. 

The first tenant ofthis building appears to have been the Joy, Freytag, & Company, a general 
store that first appears in the building in 1914. The store, whose name varies in city directories, 
rcmained in the building through 1921, after which there are no traceable tenants until 1927. 
Although not thc first business to locatc in thc building, thc Arrow Aircraft Company is perhaps thc 
most historically significant one to do so. Arrow Aircraft was incorporated by prominent Lincoln real 
estatc magnatc Mark Woods and his son Pace Sr., in 1927, shortly after the Woods family took 
control the ill-fated Patriot and Hebb Motor Companies truck manufacturing facility in Havelock. 
By 1929 Arrow was producing four airplanes per day, making Havelock, for a short time at least, thc 
largest aircraft manufacturing facility in the world. Although the Grcat Depression hurt the company 
it remained in busincss through 1940, albeit its offices were only located in this building from 1927 
through 1929. This relatively spacious building remained vacant until 1932, when Kames Inc., a 
groccry store, opcned in thc building. Karncs remained in this location through the late 1970s. Today 
the building is known as the liThe Isles" reception hall. 

LC13:GI5-022 (compatible) 
Helin Grocery 
6232 Havelock Avenue 
ca. 1909-10 

The fonncr Helin Grocery Building is a one-story, 25' x 80' brick commercial building. In 
1987, the facade ofthis small building was heavily altered and all historic features were concealed. 
Thc altcrations included installing a stuccoed facade over the original storefront and constructing a 
wood shake shingle mansard roof in front ofthe cornice. The facade now contains an entrance that 
is recessed and offset to the east. A small wood-framed addition, built in 1932, is located towards 
the rear of the building. 

From 1911 until 1958, this building contained Helin & Co., a grocery store owned by Frank 
Helin and later by his son Oscar. For a brief time in the latc 1910s the building also housed the 
Havelock Commcrcial Club. In 1958, the Helin family sold the building and it became a Salvation 
Arroy thrift store, which remained in the building until 1971. Since the late 1980s, the small building 
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has housed the Isles Restaurant. Due to the extent of the 1987 facade remodeling, the building is 
considered a non-contributing part ofthe district. However, it is still compatible with the district in 
size and seale. 

LCI3:Gl5-023 (compatible,) 
Sinclair Service Station 
6240 Havelock Avenue 
Bess & Gatenby, contractors, 1953 
Judd Bros. Const. Co., contractor, 1967 
1953, 1967 

The fonner Sinclair gas station is a Doe-story, flat roofed, concrete block building with one~ 

story additions to the east and north. The orig;nal, western portion measures 44' wide and 28' deep. 
The front of this structure originally had a large garage door on the west, now covered by vertical 
wood siding, a bricked in store entrance, and a clipped comer on the east with large display 
windows. The addition is one-story, 40' x 30', concrete block structure with a double-door and three 
large display windows. A metal canopy, spanning the eastern part of the facade, was also added in 
1967. In 1976, a small, 8' x J5' concrete block addition was built on the north side The rear, north 
side of the building has buttressed walls and several high windows. 

This site was originally the location of the Holliet House, a two-story frame hotel built in 
1891. The Holliet, whose naroe changed to the Commercial Hotel around 1910 and to the Havelock 
Hotel about J920, remained in business through 1936. After 1936, the hotel remained vacant until 
it was demolished in the mid-1940s. The existing structure was built for $12,000 in 1953 for used 
as a Sinclair Service Station. The gas station remained in business as a Sinclair station into the early 
I970s. From 1976 through the early 1990s, the building was occupied by Rohrig's Beverage Mart, 
a liquor store. The present tenant is the Tobacco Hut, a tobacco shop. 

-27­



HAVELOCK AVENUE LANDMARK DISTRICT
 
STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
 

The Havelock Avenue Landmark District consists ofa 2 Y: block stretch ofHavelock Avenue 
in northeast Lincoln. The district contains a fine collection of late Nineteenth, early Twentieth, and 
mid-Twentieth Century commercial buildings, which represent the architectural and cultural legacy 
of Havelock, Nebraska, an independent suburban town that developed around the shops of the 
Burlington & Missouri River Railroad (BNSF, nee Burlington Northern, nee CJticago, Burlington 
& Quincy). The landmark district is significant for its role in the rise and decline ofHavelock as an 
independent town. The district is Lincoln's most intact example ofthe "main streets" that developed 
in the city's historic suburban towns of College View, Bethany Heights, Havelock and University 
Place. The district has two distinct chapters in its history. The fust embodies the fony-year period 
between 1890 and 1930, when Havelock was an independent town. The second era encompasses the 
early post WlDexation years, 1930-1962. Currently, the period ofsignificance is 1890-1930, the years 
that Havelock was an independent town. 

The avenue, which was originally called Jackson Avenue and later "0" Street before being 
renamed Havelock Avenue in 1931, served as the "main street" of Havelock for fony·years, from 
the town's inception in 1890, until its annexation by Lincoln on October I, 1930. During this period, 
Havelock was an independently functioning community, with its own businesses, churches, schools, 
and even its own social life. The business district was central to the daily functioning of the 
community. In the district, one could shop for goods at general stores, clothiers, grocers. and 
hardware stores. For entertainment. there were movie theaters. pool halls, saloons, and several 
fratemallodges. The avenue was also home to several professional offices. ineluding the corporate 
headquarters of the Arrow Aireraft Company. The district even laid claim to two banks, two 
newspapers, a post office, a city hall, and a fire department. Enhancing the vitality of the district, 
were many upper story apartments, located in some of the larger two-story buildings. 

After annexation in 1930, the business district continued to prosper as it slowly transfonned 
into the principal commercial and entertainment eenter in northeast Lincoln. The district's 
importance to the City of Lincoln after annexation is demonstrated by the significant amount of 
growth that oecurred in the district after annexation. Although only a few buildings were eonstrueted 
between 1930 and 1945, which is more reflective of the conditions brought about by the Great 
Depression and World War II, a signifieant amount ofdevelopment occured in the 1950s and early 
1960s. During the post-war era several new structures were built in and around the district. This 
period ofgrowth coneluded in 1962, when the last historic building was eonstrueted in the district. 
Since this second period of development eoneluded the early 1960s, not enough time has gone by 
to allow for its significance to be fully understood. Therefore, the period of significanee is being 
drawn at 1930. corresponding to the year ofannexation. The district should be reevaluated in several 
years, when the full impacts of the post-World War 11 growth can be more thoroughly understood, 
and the period of significance should be extended through 1962. 

The district is eomprised of a series of small seale, one, two, and three story commercial 
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buildings. The structures are ofpredominantly brick, stone, and wood construction. Most buildings 
are ofrather modest design, reflecting Havelock's middle-class work ethic. The notable exceptions, 
which include the Joyo Theatre, the Lancaster Block, and the Schmidt Building, act as focal points 
that anchor the district's street comers. Other buildings, such as the Old Post Office, the Odd Fellows 
Hall, the Walton Block, and the Old Engine House, soliditY the interior block faces. Unlike many 
older commercial areas in Lincoln, the modem construction in the district has been ofthe same size 
and scale as the older, more historic buildings. Consequently, the modern buildings tend to unify, 
rather than detract from the district. This combination of strong comer buildings, fine interior block 
faces, and sympathetic modem infill gives the district a strong sense of visual hannony that is not 
found in most commercial areas of Lincoln. 

HISTORY OF HAVELOCK 
The community ofHavelock has a rich and interesting history that is inextricably tied to the 

B.&M.R.lC.B.&Q. Railroad. The railroad first laid rails thougb the future site ofHavelock in 1870, 
however, nearly two decades would pass before the town ofHavelock would be founded. Havelock 
was platted on June30, 1887, by the Lancastcr Land Company, which had been founded that spring 
by Albert E. TouzaJin, vicc president of the B.&M.R. R.R. in Nebraska, and two of the railroad's 
land agents, John D. MacFarland and John R. Clark. The town was narnod aftcr Touzalin's 
childhood hero, British Major-General Sir Henry Havelock. Havelock essentially existed only on 
papcr until 1890, when the Lancaster Land Company gave the B.&M.R. 300 acres of land in 
Havelock to build a new locomotive and car repair facility. 

The railroad had been looking for asite on which to build arepair facility for some time. The 
I880s were aperiod ofrapid development forthe railroad. Thc B.&M.R. R.R.grew in length, volume 
oftraffic carried, and it added substantially to its roster oflocomotives and rolling stock. As a result 
of the railroad's rapid growth, its original shop facility, located in Plattsmouth, Nebraska., was 
quickly outgrown. Due to the limited space around the Plattsmouth Shops, the railroad opted to look 
elsewhere to construct a new repair facility, a place where there was adequate room to expand. 
When the Lancaster Land Company offered the railroad a site in Havelock, the railroad accepted, 
no doubt in part because of Albert Touzalin's hand in the matter. 

The original plat of Havelock was vacated on June 23,1890. The next day, Havelock was 
replaned with a 300-acre parcel set aside for the new shops. Included in the plat was a 3 block wide 
by 5 %block long area containing 25' wide lots, that were intended for commercial purposes. Ground 
breaking for the new shops took place in late June 1890 and to show its confidence in the future of 
Haveloek and eneourage further investment, the Lancaster Land Company built the Lancaster Block 
in late] 890, on a prominent eorner, near the center ofthe area platted for the business distriet. The 
two-story, brick commereial block gave a sense ofpennanence to the otherwise undeveloped town. 
Over the next several months the town acquired a depot, several false-front eommereial buildings 
were construeted, and at least five residenees were built. Early businesses on the avenue included 
a dry goods storelbarber shop on the northeast comer ofForbes and Jackson (61 st and Haveloek) and 
a hardware store across the street to the south. A post offiee opened in the dry goods store on 
December 31 lt, further establishing the town's pennanence. A seeond railroad, the Chieago, Roek 
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Island, & Pacific, reached Havelock in 1891. The Havelock Shops offieially opened in 1892 and 
employed several hundred men. Havelock was incorpomted on May 6, 1893 and a streetcar line from 
Lincoln was completed later that year. 

Although Havelock was considered a subw-b of Lincoln and its residents could easily catch 
a train or streetcar to Lincoln, Havelock, unlike the other suburban towns, always prided itself on 
having an identity that was separate and distinct from Lincoln. This sense ofcommunity was strong 
in Havelock because it was an industrial town, unlike the other suburban towns which primarily 
existed to serve the needs ofsmaIl, religious-based colleges. The college towns never had the strong 
identities because they had relatively transient populations. Essentially. they were places where 
young men and women came to live for a few years while they acquired an education. Havelock was 
different because it was a working class community, where people lived, worked, and raised 
fwnilies. Consequently, Havelock residents had a great deal of pride in their community, which 
translated into the strong sense of community identity. 

Havelock Avenue developed into a "main street" because its citizens were working-class 
people who did not have the time, or the financial means to commute back and forth to Lincoln every 
time they needed something, be it groceries, clothing, or personal items. Havelock residents shopped 
at their local merchants because it saved timc and money, it also helped insure their community's 
future as an independent city. 

The Havelock Shops havc always been the primary employer in Havclock. As a result, the 
prosperity of Havelock was dependent on the shops. The stable employment offered by the shops 
helped curtail many of the effects of the Panic ofl893. By 1895, the shops employed more than 400 
men, with a monthly payroll totaling $17,000. As a result of the railroad's steady employment 
opportunities, Havelock's population swellod to more than I, I00 residents by 1896 and to nearly 
1,500 hy 1900. By 1903 Havelock had over 1,600 residents and the Burlington shops had a monthly 
payroll of $31,000. By this time, Jackson (Havelock) Avenue had developed into a full-flodgcd 
"main street", lined with false-front commercial buildings and brick business blocks. ln 1918, nearly 
90% of the Shops' I,OOO-member workforce livcd in Havelock, making up roughly 28% of 
Havelock's entire population. 

Havelock prospered as a community into thc early 1920s, reaping the benefits ofhaving such 
a major employer in the community. Havelock's population had grown to 3,600 by 1920, however, 
thc impact ofthe full shops would soon become halUltingly apparent. Havelock's future was forever 
changed in 1922, whcn 903 of the Burlington's 1,000 shop workers went on strike over wage cuts 
and the elimination ofovertime pay. Thc strike was never resolved. Asa result, the Shops' activities 
were curtailed and its labor force was greatly reduced for many years. The effects of the strike 
cripplcd Havelock, and its impact can be seen in Havelock's negligible 1% population growth during 
the 1920s. This is in stark contrast to the population booms that occurred in Lincoln and the other 
suburban towns. Lincoln's population grew by 20% during the 1920s, whilc the other suburban 
communities grew at evcn greater rates. Bethany experienced a 28% increase in its population, 
College View grew by 30%, and University Place posted a population increase of 33%. It was thc 
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lack of prosperity brought about by the strike, combined with Havelock's higher tax levy, that 
ultimately led to the decision by the Havelock voters to approve annexation by Lincoln in 1930. 

The district is unique in several ways, when compared to the main streets in Lincoln's other 
early suburban toYmS. Havelock was platted with the intention of becoming an industrial town, so 
it relied on its railroad facilities for its prosperity. All of the other suburban towns relied on their 
small religious-based colleges for prosperity.'This meant that Havelock had a strong economic base, 
which allowed the community to function as a self-sufficient city. The other suburbs relied on 
Lincoln for their survival, so they never developed as fully as Havelock. The fact that Havelock was 
a working-class town, rather than a college town is also reflected in the types of business fOmId on 
its "main street." Havelock had more grocery stores and banks, as well as more entertainment type 
businesses when compared to the other suburban towns. This reflected that Havelock was more of 
a "town," where one could buy a house and raise a family, rather than being just a place to live 
attending college. Havelock's high number ofsaloons, pool halls, and theaters, reflects that fact that 
its citizens typica:Ily had morc frce time in the evenings, and had disposable income to support 
recreational activities. 

HISTORY OF HAVELOCK AVENUE 
Havelock Avenue was originally a dirt thoroughfare. Wooden sidewalks were constructed 

in the 1890s and a streetcar line was constructed down the middle of the street in 1898. Pennanent 
sidewalks were constructed along the street in 1913. The avenue was paved with brick in 1914, 
making Havelock one of the few towns in the west with a population ofless than 3,000, to have 
paved streets. In later years, the trolley tracks were removed and the avenue was repaved with 
asphalt/concrete, although the side streets still retain their historically significant brick paving. 

THE STREETSCAPE 
The architectural significance of the Havelock Avenue Landmark District is derived not only 

from its buildings, but also from its slreetscape. In his highly acclaimed work, entitled Main Street 
Revisited, Richard Francaviglia idcntifies the three defirring elements of a main street as the street, 
the buildings, and the open spaces. All threc features are present in, and integral to the significance 
of the Havelock Avenue Landmark District. While it is commonly accepted that the buildings 
contained within the distriet are architecturally significant, the street and the open spaces within it 
are of near equal importance. The narrow street width, wide sidewalks, two·way single·lane traffic, 
diagonal parking, and the brick side streets are all contributing elements that help define the district's 
urban fonn. The significance ofthese elements becomes quite apparent when the district is compared 
the University Place business district, located only a few miles away. Both downtowns still retain 
their buildings, however. the "main street" (North 48th Street) in University Place has been widened 
into a four-lane arterial street, with narrow sidewalks, and no parking. These alterations have 
destroyed the area's integrity and its ability to function as a "main street." This fact clearly 
demonstrates the significance of the streetscape to the Havelock Avenue Landmark District. The 
continuous frontage of the buildings, unbroken by open spaces, creates an urban canyon, which is 
another important element of the district's character. 
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The Havelock Avenue Landmark District is thc best preserved example ofthe "Main Streets" 
that developed in Lincoln's early suburban towns. The district is both architecturally and culturally 
significant for thc role it played in the development ofHavelock as an independent town and for the 
role in played in the everyday lives of its residents. This gem of a district plays a key role in 
interpreting thc history ofHavelock. It is also representative of the development that occurred in the 
other small suburban towns surrounding Lincoln. 
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• • 

(Based on Ihe Sec. of IlIlcrio~s Standards for Rehabililalion '" Guidelin.. for Rehabilitating Historic 
Buildings, with odditional infollllBtion on sillJlll) 

I. Every reasonable effort shall be ntadc to provide s compatible usc for a property which requires minimal 
alteration of the building, structure, or site and ill environment, or to U8C a property for ill originally 
inlcndcd purpose. 

2. The distinguishillll original qualities or chanicler of a buildi... 1InICtuIe, or site and ill environment shall 
not be destroyed. The removal or alteration ofany historic material or distinctive uchitce:tural fCllllU'Cs 
should be avoided when possible. 

3. All buildings, structures, and sitas shall be....,gniz.cd as products of their own lime. AIter8lions that have 
no historical basis and which seck to create an earlier appc8JIlI1Ce shall be discolll'll8ed. 

4. ChaIIIlcs which may have t8kcn p1a<c in the co.... of time arc evldcnoc oflhe history and development of 
a building, struclUJe, or site and ill environment. These chaIIIlcs 0t8y have acquired signillcance in their 
own right, and this significance shall be _izcd and ",spooted. 

S. Distinctive stylistic features or examples ofskilled craftsmansbip whicb chanlctcri.. a building, ,tJuclurc, 
or site shall be treated with sensitivity. 

6. Deteriorated uchitectunol fealUJe' shall be "'P"ired ralher than "'Placed, wberever possible. In the event 
"'Placement is ncces58l)', the new material should match the material being "'P1a<cd in composition, design, 
color, texture, and other visual qualities. Repair or "'Placement of missing architce:tural features should be 
based on accurate duplications ocrestures, substantialed by historic, pbysical, or pictorial evidence "'ther 
than un conjectunol de'ign' or the availability ofdifferen1 architce:tural elemenlll from other buildilllls or 
structures. 

7. The surface cleaning oflllJUClWCs shall be undertaken with the genUcst means possible. Sandblastins and 
other cicanillll methods that will damqe the historic buildillll mmcrials shall not be undertaken. 

8. Every "'asonable effort shall be made to protect and pJ1lSCrVC archeological raoun:cs affected by, or 
adjsccnt to any project. 

9. New alt....iUIIS and additions shall be compatible in silJc, scale, color, material and character with the 
building and dill1rie!. Compatible con_porary design that achieve, these standord, and docs not destroy 
significant historical, architce:tural or cultunol material, may be ponniued. 

10. Wherever possible, new additions or alter8lions to structure. shall be do.. in such a lIUlIIIICI' that if such 
addition. or alterstions were to be "'moved in the filIure, the csscnlial fonn and integrity of the SlrUcIUrc 

would be unimpaired. 
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ADAPTED FROM GUIDELINES FOR APPLYJNG
 
mE SECRETARY OF mE INTERIOR'S STANDARDS
 

THE ENYIRQNMENTRecqmmeo4ed 

Retaining diJtiactive (CIlUrC8 such as the sizc, 
",oJe. mass. color. and IIUlICrials ofbuildings, 
including sto",ftonts, corni.... and awnings thai 
give a buaincas district its distinguishing 
<hamcter, 

Retaining lands<ape l"ealIIIes suc:h .. _,Iigh.., 
signs, ben<hes. walkways, _, oJleys and 
building set·backs thai have Inldltionally linked 
buildings to their enviromnenl. 

Using new plant lllIlerioJs. walkways. stJeellights, 
signs, and ben<hes !hat ore compatible with the 
<hara<:ter of the neighborbood in Ii... ",oJe, 
materioJ and color,(8.. !be a_cd Homod 
A... Sir" CrlUritl ror addltlo••1plclo... o. 
sips,) 

BUILDING SITE
 
Reoommendc<l
 

Identifying plonts, ImlS, walkways, and other 
elements !hat might be on impo"""t port of the 
property's histo!)' and development. 

Retaining plants, trees, walkways, s_llighlS, 
signs, and bench.. that ",nect the property's 
histOl)' and developmenl. 

Basing decisions for new site work. on actual 
knowledge of the pIOl oppeoraneeorthe property 
found in phologrlpba, dnwinp, newspapers, and 
other records. Ir changes ore made, they should be 
....lIdly eval"'''' in light of the post appearance 
of the site, 

Providing proper site and roof drainage 10 aoawe 
that water does nol splash oaainst the building or 
foundelion walls, nor dnin towerd the building, 

Npt Recommended 

Introducing new <OIIS1J1lCnon into neighborhooda 
thai is incompatible with the character orthe 
district because ofsize, "'ale, color, and lllIlerials, 

Destroying the "'llIiOlllhlp or buildinp and their 
enviroament by widening existing streets, 
chansins paving materioJs, or by introducing 
i"ppiOJOiately located news_ and porIdng 
loIS dIllI ore Incompalible with the chara<:ter orthe 
neighborhood. 

Jmroducing signs, stJeelliahting, bench... new 
plont lllIlerioJs, waIIcwIIys and paving materioJs 
dIllI .... oul ofocaIe or inappropriate to the 
neighborhood. 

NO! Recommended 

Making changes to the appearance of the site by 
nomoving old planlS, trees, walkways, and other 
elementll befo", evalualing their importllnce i. the 
property's history and devdopmenl. 

Leaving plonllllllerials and _s in <lose 
proximity to the building dIllI may couse 
deterioralion of the historic fabric. 
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BUILDING: STRUCDJRAL SYSTEMS 
Not Recommended 

Recommended 

Recosniziog the special problema i_t in the 
structunll S)'stems orhiB1oric buildinp, especially 
where there are visible signs ofcracking, 
deflection, or failure, 

Undertaking stabilization and
 
repair weakcniog structwaI members and systeDlS.
 

Replacing hiB1oricolly importanl strocturol 
members only when neceuary. Supplementing 
existing stnIctunll systems when dam. or 
inadequate. 

BUILDING: EXTERIOR FEATURES 
(MesoIII)': brick, B1one, IemI coI1a, concrete, 

stucco, and mo_) 

Recommended 

Retaining originol .....111)' and mortar, wbenever 
possible, withoUlthe "Pplicalion ofany sllJ'face 
treatmenl. 

Repointing only mortar joints where there is 
evidence of moistun: problems or when sufficient 
mortar is missing to allow water to stand in the 
mortar joint. 

Duplicating old mortar in composition, color, and 
texture. 

Duplicoting old mortar in joinl size, method of 
upplication, and joint profile. 

Repeiring stucco with a SIUCCO mixtun: thai 
duplicates the origlnol as closely as possible in 
sppeannce and textun:. 

DisturbiDllexisting foundations with new 
excavatlolll thai UDderminc: the stzucturol stability 
orthe buildiDll. 

Leaving Iawwn IlrUcturol problems un_ that 
will cause COGllnulDll deterioration and will 
sburten the Iili: of the stroctun:. 

NoiRecommended 

Applying waterproofor water repellent coatings or 
surface consolidation treatments WIl... required to 
solve a specific tecbnical problem thai bas been 
studied and identified. Coating are lloquently 
lUlllCCCuary, expens!Ye, and C8II """,Icrate 
deterioration of the .....111)'. 

RepointiDll mortar joinbl thai do nOI need pointing. 
Using electric ssws and hammm to remove 
morlal C8II seriously dam88ethe adjacent brick. 

Repolnting with mortar ofhiab portland cemenl 
contenl can often erea1e a bond thai is stronger 
than the bullding materiol. This can cause 
deteriondion as a resull of the difTerina rates of 
expansion and the diffilring absorbency ofthe 
.....111)' IIlIIIOriaJ and the mortar. 
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BUILDING: STRUCTURAL SYSTEMS 
Rcco!lllDClldcd 

Cleani"ll m&SOlII)I only when ....SlIlII)' tD halt 
_orlIliOll or to remove graffiti and lIllIiDS and 
alWllYO with the g<ntIest method possible. such as 
low press"'" _ and soft naturo1 bristle

""''''''•. 
Repairi"ll or repla<:ing, whe.. neceSllllI)'. 
deteriorated material with new material that 
duplicate. the old as closely as possible. 

Repla<:ing missing .ignificant orcbltc<tunl1 
features, such as cornices. brackets, railings. and 
shutters, 

Rel8ining the oriainaJ or early color and rnture of 
masolll)l.urf..... including early signage 
wherever possible. Brick or stone surf"".. may 
have been painted or whiteWllohed for practical 
and aesthetic reasons. 

BUILDING: EXTERIOR WOOD J'MTIJRES 

Recommended 

Rel8ining and preierVing .ignificant arcbileclUlll! 
fe.lureo. wbenever possible. 

Repairing or replacing, where n....sary. 
deteriorated malerialthat duplicates in .ize. shape 
and teXlure tbe old as closely 15 possible. 

No! RccomrnqJded 

Repainting with molW' joinlB of a differing size or 
joint profile. texture or color. 

SandblastinJl, inchlding dry and wet grit and other 
abrasi.... brick or ""ne .urfiIce.; this method of 
cleaning erodes the .urface of the material and 
lICCelerat.. deteriorlllion. U.ing chemical cleaning 
produclsthat would bave an ad..... chemical 
reaction with the masonry materials. i.e., acid on 
limestone. 

Applying new maleriaI which i. inappropriate or 
was IlDlvailable when the building was 
constructod. such 15 artificial brick .idi"ll. 
artificial cast .tDne and brick veneer. 

Not Recommended 

Removing architc<tunl1 fwurel luch as sidi"ll. 
cornices. brlICketl, window and doorway trim. 
These .... in molt cases, an .....ti.1 part of. 
buildi"ll'. choracter and .ppearances that 
iIluslnltes the continuity of growth and cba"lle. 

Resurlilci"ll frame buildings with new material 
that is inappropriate or was UIUIVllilable when the 
buildi"ll was constructod such as artificial stone. 
brick veneer. asbestos or asphalt shingles. and 
plastic or aluminum .iding. Such material can also 
contribute tD the deteriorlllion of the I!nIClure from 
moisture and insects. 



EXTERlOR METAL 

Recommended 

Rel8ining oriainal material, whenever possible. 

Cleaning when nece"""'Y with \he 8ppropriale 
method. Melals should be cleaned by methods 
that do not abrade the surt"a<e. 

ROOFS" ROOFING 

Rewmmcnded 

Preserving thc original roof shope. 

Retaining the origlnal roofing material, if it is 
visible to passersby, and contributes to the 
ch......... or the building.. 

Providing adequate roofdnlinoge ond insuring 
that \he roofing moterials provide a weathertighl 
covering for the structure. 

Replacing deleriOlllted visible roofing with new 
material that maIl:hes \he old in composition, size, 
shape. color, and texture. 

Pre3erving or replacing, where necesSllly, visible 
an:hitectUlO1 fea1UleS that give \he roof its 
essential character. such lIS cornices, bl1lCket:s., and 
chimneys. 

WINDOWS'" DOORS 

R~nin8 and Iq)Iiring existing window and door 
openinp including window saah, glasa, lintels, 
sills, archill1lves, shutters, doon, pediments, 
hoods, steps, ond all har<!WIll'C. 

NOI Reaunmepded 

Removing architectural fea1ures that "'" an 
essential part ora building's character ond 
oppearance, iIIustl1lting the continuity or growth 
and change. 

Exposing metals which were intended to be 
protected from the environment. Do not use 
cleaning methods which alter the color, texture, 
ond "ne of the metals. 

No! Recgmmendcc! 

Changing \he essenlial character of the roof by 
Bdding inappropriate features such lIS donner 
windows, vlOlllJ, or skylights. 

Applying new roofing material that is 
inappropriate to the style and period of the 
building and neighbcubood. 

ReplllCing deteriOl1lted visible roofings with new 
lIIlIterials1hat differ 10 such an extent from the old 
in composition, size, shape, color ond texture that 
the oppearance of \he building is altered. 

Stripping \he roof of architectural features 
imporUmt to its ehlracter. 

Not Recommended 

Inlroducing new window and door openings Inlo 
\he principal elevations, or enI81g1ng or reducing 
window or door openings 10 fit new stock window 
sash or new stock door sizes. 

WINDOWS" DOORS. capt. 
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Dupli""ting the material, dnigo, and the 
hanlWll10 of the older window sash and doon if 
new sash and doors are uaed. 

l115la1ling visually unoblnlsive stonn windoW> 
and doon, where nccded, that do not damage 
existing thunes and that un be removed in the 
future, 

InsIaIling fabric awnings on storefronts and 
windows based on historic photos of the distrie!, 
reestablishing the relatioll5hip ofbuilding facades 
and the sidewalk. 

Using original doon and door hanlWll10 when 
they can be repaired and reused in place. 

EXIERlOR nNlSHES 

Rewmmcnded 

Discovering the bistoric paint colon and finishes 
of the structure and repainting wilh those colon to 
iIIu.traIe the distinctive cbamcler of the properly. 

NEW CONSTRUCDON 

Recommended 

Iteeping new Idditlon. and Idj""l new 
coDltr\lCtion to 8 minimum. making them 
compatible in scale, building materials, and 
Icxture. 

Not Recommended 

Altering the size of window _ or sash. Such 
change. de.bOY the scale and proportion of the 
building. 

InsIaIling iDlpplOpriate new window or door 
fealUr<s such u aluminum stonn and screen 
window lnau1ating glus combination. that require 
the removal oforiginal windows and doors. 

IllSlaIling plutic, unvu, or melal strip awnings or 
fake shutlen that detnct from the chanocter and 
appearllllCC of the building. 

Discarding original doon and door hanlWll10 when 
they un be repaired and reused in pi.... 

No! Recommended 

Removing paint and finishes down to lhe bare 
.urface; strong paint .trippers whether chemical or 
mechanical un pennanently damage lhe surface. 
Also, stripping obJitenlte. evidence of the 
historical paint finishes. 

Repainting with colon that C8IlIlOt be documented 
Iluough ...- and investigslion to be 
appOJlriale 10 the buildina and neighborhood. 

No! Rec!lDll!!e!!ded 

Designing new work which is incompatible wilh 
the earlier building and the district in materials, 
sizc, scale. lIPd texture. 

NEW CONSTRUCllON. conL 

Recommended 

Designing new work to be compatible in materials, 



size, sc:alc. color. and texture with the earlier 
building and the dillricl. 

U.ing contempol1ll)' designs compatible with the 
charo<ter IIld mood of the building or the dillrict. 

Protecting architectural details and feature. tbal 
contriba.e to the chanlctcr of the building. 

Placing television antennae and mechanical 
equiprncnt, such as air conditioners. in an 
inconspicuous location. 

MECHANICAL SYSTEMS: HEATING, AIR 
CONDITIONING. ELECTIlICAL 
PLUMBING. " FIRE PROTECTION 

Installing necessary mechllnical systems in areas 
IIld spaces tbal will require the leas. possible 
a1tenlion 10 tbellrUClwaI integrity and physical 
IppeanlllOC of the building. 

Utilizing early mechanical systems, including 
piumbingllld early lighting fixtures, where 
possible. 

Installing tbe verticall'llrul ofduets, pipes, and 
cables in closets, service rooms. and wall cavities. 

Not Recommended 

Imitating III earlier .tyle or period of architeelure 
in new additions. except in rare cases where a 

contcmponiy deoillJl would ddnIct from the 
architeetwal unity of.. enoemble or group. 
Especially avoid imitating .. e.rlier style of 
architecture in new IIddjtiom that have 8 

completely conlompol1ll)' f'wlction such as a drive­
through bank or garage. 

Adding new heighl to the building tbal changes the 
scale and character of the building. Additions iD 
height should 001 be vi.ible when viewing the 
principal facades. 

Adding new lloon or removing existing lloon; that 
destroy impolt8lll archi'e<lunll details, fealures, 
IJld S!*'C. of the building. 

Placing television aolennae IIld mechanical 
cquipmcn~ such as air conditio...., where they 
can be secn fiom the street. 

Not Recommended 

Causing unnecesll8l)' cJarnaae 10 the pllll. 
malerial., IIld appe8J8lloo of the building wheD 
installing mechanical system•. 

Anacbing exIerior electrical and telephone cabl.. 
10 the priDcipalelevations of tbe building. 

In....ling the vertical nms ofduet., pipes, and 
cable. iD places where tbey will be a vi.ual 
intrusion.
 
MECHANICAL SYSTEMS; IIIATING. AIR
 
CQNDlTIQN]NG. EJ.ECI1UCAL.
 
PLUMBING. "FIRE PROTECTION
 

Insuring adcqllllk ventilalion of attics, 
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CI1lwl.poces. and ..11m to prevent moisture 
probloms. 

InmllinB thermal insulltion in attics and in 
unIlealcd ccllm and cnwlspoces to conserve 
energy. 

Not Recommended 

Conccali"ll or ''making invisible" mechanical 
equipment in historic walla or ccilinp. Frequently 
this concealment requires the removal of historic 
fabric. 

Installing "dropped" acoustical ceili"ll' to hide 
mechanical equipment. This destroys the 
proportions and chanlcter of the rooms. 

Installing foam, Blass fiber, or cellulose losulotion 
into wall cavities of either wooden or IlUI!OIUl' 
construction. This has been found I<J cause 
moisture problems when there is DOt sdequste 
moisture barrier. 
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Back&ropad 

Though its name has shifted from Jackson Avenue to "0" Street to Hlvel""k Avenue. this "Main Street" has 
always been the heart of Hlvel""k's business dislric~ with numerous signa announcing the various shops 
and buildings. The ami has been designaled I Landnuult Dislricl by the City Council to acknowledge its 
hiltOric importance and to protect its special character. The Historic PrelemttiOD Commission is usigntd 
the role of reviewing proposed changes to the appearance ofthe district, iIIcIuding new signa, to pro_the 
community's interest in preserving this visible pan ofour herilllge. In I commercial ..... signa arc an 
important pan of the overall visual character of the ....... well .. being important to the funclioning of 
indi\lidual businesses. 

Since the Hlvel""k Avenue business district was largely developed between Havelock's foUDding around 
1890 and its joining with Lincoln in 1930, signa should genenlly have the appeannce of signs of that el1l, 
and should rellte to their buildings in I traditional manner. To be il1ll81led legally, signs in Lincoln must 
have s siSO permil issued by the city's Building and Safety DepaJtmenl. Wllbl. blslorie dlslriell, 
IpprovO' by Ibe Hislorie Preservodo. Commlssloa Is ""Iaired before 0 sip permll caa be .aed. 

Buk PriDeiPlM for Hll'eI. Arm.. Sip' 

The following sign criteri.. and the interprelBtion of these criteria by the Historic Prcservlllion Commission, 
arc intended to implement four booic principles; 

I. The primary funcrion of signa is the identiflclllion of buildings. businesses, and the dislrict .. a 
whole. 

2. No signs will be pcnnitted thai disfigure or co....1significant an:hiteetural f..turcs ofa building. 

3. All signs must be subordinate to and in hannoay with lhe buildings to which they relale and 10 the 
dislricl as 0 whole. They musl be compalible with the 19· and early 20· oentwy charoctcr of this "Moin 
Street" commcn:ial diitricl. 

4. Signs for the district should be well-dcsigned, well....ccuIed. and well-Ioclted on their buildings. 
Old photograplll of the dislrict provide a useful models for designing and positioning ~ signs. 

Pn!blbiljou 

I. Plostic-faced, interior-illuminated signs arc nol pcnnitted in the Havel""k Avenue landmark dislrict. 
This prohibition does not apply to exisring signa of this type in the dislric~ bul owne.. arc enoourqed 10 
replace them e'f'entually and should be aware that the Preservation Commission mwt review, and is unlikely 
10 appro\le. new faces for existing signs. 

2. TDlrIlIluscentawnings of plastic or vinylized materialJ with interior iIIU111inallon arc nnl pcnnined in 
the District. Opaque awnings, with nr without inscripriona Ipplied to them, arc not prohibited but will be 
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reviewed ....e-by-ase for oppropri8lene.., 

3, Sign, obscuring ,ignificant an:hite<:1unI1 features will not be pennitted. 

Rmp•••ded lyRn Qf Sip. 

Photopphs depicting the ....Iy days oflUvclod<', bwIiness district show a bustling area with a profUsion 
of signs. AmOllll the characteristica of many of these signs are long-Iutiog DIlIIerials, a high depee of 
legibility, and careful coordination with lbe arehil..,run: ofthe buildings. Among the types of signs 
appropriate to this area are: 

Wall Sip. 
On principal facade., signs formed of individual letters applied directly 10 the wall, or 
altached 10 a background panel wilh alimne, are often appropriale. These .igns should 
usually be "'aIod to relate to the wiIoIe facade, and installed in the flal ·sign hand" area above 
the storeftont level, or below the comice. Wall signs painted on or spplled to wooden or 
me1al panels can also be appropriale. U.. of light-colored loners on a darker background is 
strongly encournged. 

On side and rear wall., painted wall signs were commonly.-l. A black band with white 
lellers and a white border WIll the most common color "'heme, but yellOWl, pens. and other 
brigh~ primary colors were aIsoincorpol8tcd into thcso signs. In some instances, painted 
wall' ,ign. were uoed on prinoipal facades, but these musl be very cerefiIIly considered and 
very well integrated with the an:hitecture. 

Awaings 
Fabric awninp, u,ually of trianau1so _tion, are commonly seen in historic photographs of 
Havelock Aven... Message. were usually confined to the valance area, probably becau.. 
the.. awning were lnditionally cranked or folded ftat 888inst the _e, leaving only the 
vall1l1l:e visible. Preference is given to swning signs incorpolllling theoelnditional feature•. 

WiDd... Sign. 
Signs for individual busi...... are often most appropri.lcly u-lled in windoWl, usually by 
painting or applying individualleners on the glass. The Conunl..ion will allow s variety of 
material. and graphic ,tyles in window signs, but will look for good graphic design, legibility, 
simplicity ofmessage, and scale appropriale to the stnrefton! and building. 

''''J..,llo. Si.... 
Projecting signs, usually colISisting of letters applied In or painted on panela, can be 
approved, either for building identiftcation or for individual businesses. The former should 
uouatly be desisned and positioned 10 relate to the building as s wIlole, while the latter should 
usually be smaller and relate 10 a specific storeftont or entrance. 

J!qmflnr UlIUlfituUltm 
Incandescent illuminalion i3 preferred for siop, either shielded 10 spoOighl wall signs, 
owninp, or projecting signs, or ..poled to ronn individual lellers (usually in a me1al 
channel). Window sign. in briglnly lit storeftonts are etlCOIIlDBed IS they provide sttnlctive 
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ligns al nighl and increase the ambienllighl 00 the sidewalk for pedes1rians. Havelock 
A",,"ue _in. a few examples ofearly examples ofneon ligns (Joyo Theater, Arnold'. 
Tav..,,) that add 10 the ehanl<:ler of the diSlriCl. Additional signs with e.posed ncoo tubing. 
either in the fona ofsigns within windows, or projecting Cl<lcrior .igns, will be carcfuJly 
reviewed on a casc-by...... basi. for their lnIdilional quality of dcllign, oppropriatenelSlO the 
individual buildinllo and overall impocl on the__pc. 

Ilqtuilu oq.Prrm/u SII!II 
Historie photogmpbs ofHavelock Avenue show very few ofT-promise signs, usually in the 
form of paintod signs 00 .ide wall.. Billboardo will nol be approved in the landmark diSlriCl 
because the gmphie design and cbaaaeable nallR oftheir mes_. are seldom appropriale in 
appcaranoc to the DiS1ric!. OfT-pmnise sips advertisi"l! the DislriClas a whole, or 
busi within the DislriCl, may be more appropriue and will be reviewed on a....-bY­
e basis, as will incorporating badinonalloll"l commonly .... in early oUldoor advenising. 

"S/rIl." IS deOm I!! I•• Ljn""" 1/1111ne Cd. (LMe 27.0}.550): 
"Sign shDlI me"" arry structflre, fixture, graphic" IllwtreJIiol'J, stahle, or DIner devIce vlslbl, 
from offlhe pr.mls. drslgord or I,'e"""d 10 adHrtlse. to id.lIlify. 10 al"ael al/.lIllon 10. or to 
oolI"'Y Ilf!onMI;on regarding wry goods. f1"OdJ4ct. service. bld/"''', /OCQ/ion, Instltullon, 
aclltlity, psrwlI, solicitation, IsslIe, or campaign. wllh 1M exception ofmerchandise window 
displays, flags ofany 1IQI1an, SIal., or paillical ndJdivision, or ,CJJJplur.. For purpase, of 
rrmoval, signs slral/ also Inclotk ony sign slTuclllrr. 
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CLEMENTS, DREVO & RUST 
ATTORN'i AT LAW 

RICHARD L CLEMENTS o 151 N. 4th Street P.O. BOI( 267 
DAVID A. DREVO Elmwood, NE 68349..Q267 
JESSE E. RUST 402.994.4000 • FAX 402.994.5455 
DWIGHT L. CLEMENTS (RETIRED) 
GUY L CLEMFNr5 (1889-1970) o	 Lincoln Trade Center 

5901 S. 58th. St. Suite B 
Lincoln, Nebra9ka 68516 

402.420.6443 • FAX 402.420.6443 

June 18, 2007 

coward F. Zimmt:r
 
Historic Preservation Planner
 
Lincoln-Lancaster County
 
Planning Department
 
555 South 10~ Street, Suite 213
 
Lincoln, NE 68508
 

RE: Havelock Avenue Landmark District 

Dear Mr. Zimmer: 

This is to submit my written objection to the creation of the Havelock Avenue Landmark 
District on behalf of Amelia Snavely Trust. I am the Successor Trustee. 

I believe operation and sale of the property the Trust owns in the District would be 
diminished by the increased regulations created by the proposed plan. 

Please note the opposition of the plan having been made by the owner of Lots 22, 23, 
and 24, Block 16, Havelock, Lincoln, Lancaster County, Nebraska, Except a tract 
described as beginning at the Southwest comer ofLot 22, thence East .35 Feet, thence 
North on R straight,li~ to a point OIl ~ Nort:b line ofl..IJt 22 wbith!s .15 Feet E3.~ oft...lte 
Northwest Comer of said Lot 22, thence West .15 Feet to the Northwest Comer of said 
Lot 22, thence South along the West line of Lot 22 to the place of the beginning, also 
known as 6240 Havelock Avenue, Lincoln, NE. 

Truly Yours, 

Richard L. Clements, Trustee 
Attorney at Law 
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